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CHAIRMAN’S MESSAGE

Dear Shareholders, e

It gives me immense pleasure to welcome you all on behalf of the esteemed members of the
Board to the second (02"%) Annual General Meeting (AGM) of Ircon Haridwar Bypass Limited
(IrconHBL). The Directors’ Report and the Audited Financial Statements for the period ended
on 31%t March, 2024, are already with you and with your kind permission, | take them as read.
| would like to express my sincere gratitude for making it convenient for attending the AGM.

Ircon International Limited (“IRCON”) has been awarded the work of Upgradation and Four
Laning of Haridwar Bypass Package-1 From Km.0+000 (Km 188+100 of NH-58) to Km.
154100 (km 5+100 of NH 74) (‘the Project’) in the State of Uttarakhand on Hybrid Annuity
Basis (HAM) by National Highway Authority of India (NHAI). In terms of condition stipulated in
Letter of Award issued by NHAI, IRCON has incorporated your Company as its wholly-owned
subsidiary and a Special Purpose Vehicle for execution of the Project.

| would like to place before you, few highlights of IrconHBL.

IrconHBL has entered into Concession Agreement with NHAI on 08" March, 2022. and the
concession period of the project comprises of construction period of 730 days from the
appointed date and operation & maintenance period of 15 years commencing from
Commercial Operation Date (COD). IRCON has been appointed as EPC Contractor in terms
of technical bid submitted by IRCON to NHAI. The appointed date declared by NHAI is 31st
October, 2022.

Further as per Concession Agreement the Bid Project Cost is Rs.861 Crore Plus GST
(excluding escalation). The 40% of the project bid cost shall be reimbursed by NHAI during
construction phase and balance 60% will be receivable after construction in the form of



Annuity. The company will finance the cost of project by way of debt of Rs.447.61 crore,
quasi-equity of Rs.111.85 crore and equity of Rs.5 lakhs. In respect of debt, State Bank of
India has sanctioned the term loan of Rs.447.61 crore. As on 315t March, 2024 your company
has availed loan amounting to Rs.112.97 crores.

IRCON has been appointed as EPC Contractor for execution of the project work including
O&M for five (05) years at EPC price of Rs.784.58 plus applicable GST. Presently
construction activities at project has started from the appointed date of 31st October, 2022
and the works are progressing on the available front.

Compliances and Disclosures

Corporate Governance: Compliances and Disclosures under the Companies Act, 2013 and
rules thereunder are being fully adhered to by your Company. As per Office Memorandum
dated 10" July 2014 and 11" July 2019 issued by Department of Public Enterprises (DPE),
CPSEs constituted as Special Purpose Vehicle (SPV) are exempted from compliance of the
DPE Guidelines on Corporate Governance for CPSEs. Hence, these are not applicable on
your company.

Memorandum of Understanding (MoU): Your Company has requested IRCON to grant it
exemption from compliance of Annual MoU exercise for the financial year 2024-25, in line with
the Memorandum of Understanding (MoU) Guidelines issued by Department of Public
Enterprises (DPE) dated 10" March, 2023 and IRCON vide its letters dated 215 March, 2024
has granted exemption to the Company from compliance of Annual MOU exercise for the
financial year 2024-25.

Acknowledgements

I,on behalf of Board of Directors,express my heartfelt thanks for the valuable assistance and co-
operation extended to the Company by MoRTH, NHAI, Ircon International Limited, Auditors of
the Company and all those who have supported and guided us during the year. | express my
deep gratitude to employees for their dedication, intellect, hard work. And last, but not least, |
would like to thank my colleagues on the Board for their contribution and continuous support.

We look forward to your continued support in our journey ahead.

For and on behalf of Board of Directors
of Ircon Haridwar Bypass Limited

Sd/-
(Masood Ahmad
Chairman
DIN: 09008553
Date: 2"¢ August, 2024
Place: New Delhi
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

Dear Members,

Your Directors have immense pleasure in presenting the 02" Annual Report of Ircon
Haridwar Bypass Limited (IrconHBL) together with the Audited Financial Statements of the
Company and Auditor’'s Report for the Financial Year ended on 31%tMarch, 2024.

BUSINESS OPERATIONAL HIGHLIGHTS: PRESENT STATE OF COMPANY’S AFFAIRS:

IrconHBL, a wholly owned subsidiary of IRCON International Limited (IRCON) was
incorporated on 13" January, 2022 as a Special Purpose Vehicle (SPV) with the main object
to carry the business of Upgradation and Four Laning of Haridwar Bypass Package-1 From
Km.0+000 (Km 188+100 of NH-58) to Km. 15+100 (km 5+100 of NH 74) (‘the Project’) in the
State of Uttarakhand on Hybrid Annuity Basis in accordance with the terms of Concession
Agreement with National Highways Authority of India (NHALI).

IrconHBL has entered into Concession Agreement with NHAI on 08" March, 2022. and the
concession period of the project comprises of construction period of 730 days from the
appointed date and operation period of 15 years commencing from Commercial Operation
Date (COD). IRCON has been appointed as EPC Contractor in terms of technical bid
submitted by IRCON to NHAI. The appointed date declared by NHAI is 315t October, 2022.

Further as per Concession Agreement the Bid Project Cost is Rs.861 Crore Plus GST
(excluding escalation). The 40% of the project bid cost shall be reimbursed by NHAI during
construction phase and balance 60% will be receivable after construction in the form of
Annuity. The company will finance the cost of project by way of debt of Rs.447.61 crore &
equity of Rs.111.85 crore. In respect of debt, State Bank of India has sanctioned the term
loan of Rs.447.61 crore. As on 315t March, 2024 your company has availed loan amounting to
Rs.112.97 crores.

IRCON has been appointed as EPC Contractor for execution of the project work including
O&M for five (05) years at EPC price of Rs.784.58 plus applicable GST. Presently
construction activities at project has started from the appointed date of 31t October, 2022
and the works are progressing on the available front.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS:

In pursuance of the provisions enumerated under Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015, the Company, has prepared its annual financial statements for the Financial
Year 2023-24 as per Indian Accounting Standards (IND AS).

Financial performance indicators as on 315t March, 2024:

(Rs. in lakh)

For the period from

Particulars forthe ?1*‘3; ;z;i 13.01.2022 to

e 31.03.2023*

1. Equity Share Capital 5.00 5.00

0 Other Equity (includes 8,584.99 8,294.00
Reserves and Surplus)

Board Report
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3. Net Worth 8,589.99 8,299.00
4 T.ota'l .A.ssets and 24,556.58 8,761.81
Liabilities
5. Revenue from Operations 21,870.48 5,205.63
6. Other Income 249.86 103.92
7. Total Income (5) + (6) 22,120.34 5,309.55
8. Profit Before Tax 361.02 103.28
9. Profit After Tax 270.80 77.06
Earnings Per Equity Share
(on face value of Rs.10/-
10. | per share) 541.60 154.12
(i) Basic 541.60 154.12
(i)  Diluted

*The company is incorporated on 13" January, 2022 as wholly owned subsidiary of Ircon
International Limited, hence corresponding figure of previous period are not provided.

DIVIDEND & APPROPRIATION TO RESERVE:

The Board of Directors does not recommend any dividend for the period under review.

As per the applicability of Ind AS, Reserves are reflected as Retained Earnings under the
head “Other Equity” in Financial Statements and your Company has a balance of Rs.347.87
Lakhs in Retained Earnings as on 31 March, 2024.

. SHARE CAPITAL/ DEMATERIALISATION:

Your Company was incorporated with an Authorized Share Capital and the Paid-up Share
Capital of the Company of Rs.5 Lakh comprising of 50,000 Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each.
Ircon International Limited (IRCON) hold 100% of the paid-up share capital of IrconHBL.
Since, the incorporation of the Company i.e., 13" January, 2022, there was no change in the
share capital of your company.

As per Rule 9A of the Companies (Prospectus and Allotment of Securities) Amendment
Rules, 2019 dated 22" January, 2019, the Company being a wholly owned subsidiary
(WoS) is not required to get its securities in dematerialised form.

. CASH FLOWS FROM THE PROJECT:

The Company is having a negative Cash Flows from operating activities of Rs.10,521.24
lakhs for the financial year ended 315t March, 2024.

DETAILS OF SUBSIDIARY/ JOINT VENTURES/ ASSOCIATE COMPANIES:

For the period under review, there was no Subsidiary/ Joint Ventures/ Associate Companies
of the Company.
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7. BOARD OF DIRECTORS & KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL.:

Board of Directors:

CATEGORY & NAME OF THE DIRECTORS WITH DESIGNATION DURING THE YEAR
2023-24:

During the year under review, the holding Company (IRCON) had nominated Mr. Alin Roy
Choudhury [having DIN: 10489550], as the Part-time (Nominee) Director of your Company
w.e.f. 2" February, 2024 vice Mr. Devendra Kumar Sharma. Mr. Devendra Kumar Sharma
ceased to be the Director of your Company consequent to withdrawal of nomination by the
holding Company (IRCON) w.e.f. January, 31, 2024.

As per Atrticles of Association of the Company, the Board of the Company is appointed by
the holding company (IRCON).

As on 318t March, 2024, total number of Director is three (3) including the Chairman,
nominated by IRCON. Details of Directors are as follows:

Category, Name & Appointment or Cessation (during

Designation the year, if any)
Mr. Masood Ahmad, Chairman |09008553 Re-designated as Chairman of the
Company w.e.f 01t February, 2024

Mr. B. Mugunthan, Director 08517013 Regularized at 1% AGM of the
Company held on 4™ August, 2023
Mr. Alin Roy Choudhury 10489550 | Appointed as Part-time (Nominee)

Director w.e.f. 2" February, 2024

In accordance with the provisions of Section 152(6) the Companies Act, 2013, all Directors
of the Company shall be liable to retire by rotation at the Annual General Meeting of your
Company. Mr. Masood Ahmad will retire by rotation at the Annual General Meeting of your
Company and being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment. The Board of Directors
recommends his reappointment as Director and his brief resume is annexed to the Notice of
the Annual General Meeting.

None of the Directors is disqualified from being appointed/ re-appointed as Director.

Key Management Personnel (KMP):

As per Section 203 of the Companies Act, 2013, your Company is not required to appoint
any Key Management Personnel (KMP) during the period under review.

8. Board Meetings:

During the period under review, the Board met four (4) times on 10-05-2023, 01-08-2023
02-11-2023, and 31-01-2024. The interval between two Board Meetings were within the
period prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013. The attendance detail of the Board
Meetings is as follows:
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Date of the Meeting Board Strength No. of Directors
Present
10-05-2023 3 3
01-08-2023 3 3
02-11-2023 3 2
31-01-2023 3 3

The table below shows attendance of the Board members at the Board Meetings held
during the period under review:

Name of Directors Meeting Date Wheth Total No. of % of
er Board Board Attendan
R I B Il attend Meeting  Meetings ce
SRR ed lastentitled to attended
Py g’ s 5' AGM attend during FY
o = o = during FY 2023-24
T |°|° | ® 2023-24
Mr. Masood Ahmad v | v |V v
Mr. Devendra Kumar v |V |V v | Yes 3 3 100
Sharma
Mr. B. Mugunthan v | v | v | ¥ | Yes 3 3 100
Mr. Alin Roy Choudhury | NA | NA | NA | NA | Yes NA NA NA

9. INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS & BOARD COMMITTEES & CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE GUIDELINES ISSUED BY DPE:

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) vide its notification dated 05" July, 2017 exempted an
unlisted public company which are wholly-owned subsidiary from the requirement of
appointing Independent Directors on its Board and constitution of Audit Committee and
Nomination & Remuneration Committee (NRC).

IrconHBL, an unlisted public company and a wholly-owned subsidiary company of IRCON,
therefore, is not required to appoint any Independent Director on its Board and the
declaration by the Independent Directors is not applicable on the Company.

Further, in terms of Department of Public Enterprises (DPE)'s Office Memorandum (OM)
dated July 8-10, 2014, read with OM dated 11" July, 2019, CPSE’s constituted as Special
Purpose Vehicle (SPV) are exempted from compliance with the DPE Guidelines on
Corporate Governance for CPSEs. Hence, Corporate Governance Guidelines of DPE are
not applicable on IrconHBL.
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10. DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT:

The Board of Directors of the Company confirms:
a) that in the preparation of the annual financial statements for the year ended
318t March, 2024, the applicable accounting standards have been followed along with
proper explanation relating to material departures, if any;

b) that such accounting policies have been selected and applied consistently and judgment
and estimates have been made that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Company at the end of the financial year March 31,
2024 and of the Profit & Loss of the Company for that period ended on that date;

c) that proper and sufficient care has been taken for the maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 for
safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and
other irregularities;

d) that the annual financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis;

e) that proper systems have been devised to ensure compliance with the provisions of all
applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.

11. DIRECTOR’S OBSERVATION AND COMMENT'S FOR FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(EXPLANATION FOR ANY COMMENTS MADE BY AUDITORS IN THEIR REPORT:

The Notes to Accounts forming part of the financial statements are self-explanatory and
need no further explanation. There are no qualifications or adverse remarks in the Auditors’
Report which require any clarification/ explanation.

12. STATUTORY AUDITORS:

M/s. Ravi Ramesh & Associates, Chartered Accountants, had been appointed as Statutory
Auditors, for the Financial Year 2023-24 vide CAG letter No./CA.V/COY/ DELHI,
IRCHBL(1)/335 dated 13" September, 2023. M/s. Ravi Ramesh & Associates, Chartered
Accountants, have confirmed by way of a written consent and certificate as required under
Section 139(1) of the Companies Act, 2013.

13. STATUTORY AUDITORS’ REPORT AND C&AG COMMENTS

The reports of the Statutory Auditors on the Financial Statements for the Financial Year
2023-24 with nil observation are attached separately as part of the Annual Report along with
Non-Review Certificate received from Comptroller & Auditor General (C&AG) of India for the
financial year 2023-24.



14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

A.

COST RECORDS

Maintenance of cost records as specified by the Central Government under sub-section (1)
of Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013, was applicable to the Company during Financial
Year 2023-24.

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

The requirement of obtaining a Secretarial Audit Report under Section 204 of the
Companies Act, 2013 from the practicing company secretary is not applicable to the
Company.

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS UNDER SECTION 186
OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013:

There are no transactions of loans, guarantees and investments as covered under the
provisions of Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 during the financial year under
review.

PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED PARTIES:

During the year, the related party transactions with the holding company, IRCON were in the
ordinary course of business and on an arm’s length basis and approved in terms of the
Companies Act 2013. The details of the related party transactions in form AOC-2 are
enclosed to this report as Annexure — A.

MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL POSITION
OF THE COMPANY AFTER THE CLOSURE OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR:

No material changes and commitments have occurred which affect the financial position of
the Company between the end of the financial year and the date of this report.

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE
EARNINGS AND OUTGO:

The particulars as prescribed under Section 134(3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read
with Rule 8(3) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 are set out hereunder:

Conservation of enerqy: -

Your Company is not engaged in any manufacturing activity and hence the furnishing of
particulars is not applicable to the Company.

Technoloqy absorption: -

Your Company is not engaged in any manufacturing activity and hence the furnishing of
particulars is not applicable to the Company.

10
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C. Foreign exchange earnings and Outgo: -

There was no Foreign Exchange Earnings and Foreign Exchange Outgo during the period
under review.

20. RISK MANAGEMENT:

In the opinion of the Board, presently the Company does not foresee any major threat/ risk
to the business of the Company.

21. CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR):

The provisions of Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) under Section 135 of the
Companies Act, 2013 were not applicable to the Company during the period under review.

22. PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES:

As per Notification dated 5" June, 2015 issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs,
Government Companies are exempted from complying with the provisions of Section 197 of
the Companies Act, 2013 and corresponding rules under Chapter XIII.

IrconHBL being a Government Company is not required to disclose information on the
remuneration of employees falling under the criteria prescribed under rule 5(2) of the
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel), as a part of the
Directors' Report.

23. CHANGE IN THE NATURE OF BUSINESS:

There is no change in the nature of business of the Company during the period under
review.

24. PUBLIC DEPOSITS:

During the period under review, your Company has not invited any deposits from its
members pursuant to the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Acceptance of
Deposits) Rules, 2014.

25. INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND THEIR ADEQUACY:

The Company has adequate system of internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements. All the transactions were properly authorized, recorded and reported to the
Management. The Company is following all the applicable Indian Accounting Standards for
properly maintaining the books of account and reporting in the financial statements. Your
Company continues to ensure proper and adequate systems and procedures
commensurate with its size and nature of its business.

11
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26. SIGNIFICANT MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS OR COURTS OR
TRIBUNALS IMPACTING THE GOING CONCERN STATUS AND COMPANY’S
OPERATIONS IN FUTURE:

No order has passed by the Regulators or Courts or Tribunals impacting the going concern
status of the Company and its operations in future during the period under review.

27. COMPLIANCE OF MSME GUIDELINES FOR IMPLEMENTATION OF PURCHASE
PREFERNCE POLICY:

In exercise of powers conferred by section 9 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprise
Development Act, 2006, the Central Government issued instructions that all companies
registered under the Companies Act, 2013 with a turnover of more than Rs.500 crores and
all CPSEs shall be required to get themselves on-boarded on the Trade Receivables
Discounting System (TReDS) platform, set up as per the notification of the Reserve Bank of
India. The Registrar of Companies (RoC) in each State shall be the competent authority to
monitor the compliance of such instructions and also the Department of Public Enterprises,
Government of India shall be the competent authority to monitor the compliance of such
instructions by the CPSEs. In compliance with the above instruction, the Company has
boarded on the TReDS platform w.e.f. 15" July, 2023, to facilitate the financing of trade
receivables of MSEs by discounting of their receivables and realisation of their payment
before the due date.

28. DISCLOSURE AS PER THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE
(PREVENTION, PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013:

The Company being a wholly owned subsidiary of IRCON, ‘Policy for Prevention, Prohibition
and Redressal of Sexual Harassment at Workplace’ of IRCON (POSH Policy) is applicable
on the Company and the Internal Complaints Committee of IRCON deals with all the
matters under the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and
Redressal) Act, 2013.

During the period under review, there was no incidence where any complaint relating to
sexual harassment was reported pursuant Section 22 of the Sexual Harassment of Women

at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013.

29. VIGIL MECHANISM:

The Company has established a mechanism for directors and employees to report concerns
about unethical behaviour, actual or suspected fraud, or violation of the Code. It also
provides for adequate safeguards against the victimization of employees who avail the
mechanism. Being a wholly owned subsidiary of IRCON, for employees nominated and
deputed from IRCON, the Whistle Blower Policy of IRCON is applicable, which is available
on the website at, https://www.ircon.org/images/file/cosecy/Whistle-Blower-Policy.pdf.

12
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For other persons in employment of the Company, complaint/ reporting under Vigil
Mechanism, can be addressed to:

Shri Masood Ahmad, Director

Ircon Haridwar Bypass Limited (IrconHBL)
Address: Ircon International Limited,

C-4, District Centre, Saket, New Delhi- 110017

Phone No.: +91 -9560595062, Email id: masood.ahmad@ircon.org

RIGHT TO INFORMATION:

No application under Right to Information Act, 2005 was received by your company during
the FY 2023-24.

PERFORMANCE EVALUATION OF BOARD MEMBERS:

Pursuant to the notification of Ministry of Corporate Affairs dated 5" June, 2015, sub-
sections (2), (3) & (4) of Sec. 178 regarding the performance evaluation shall not apply to
Directors of Government Company.

Being a Government Company and a wholly-owned subsidiary of Ircon International Limited,
all part-time Directors are nominated by the holding company, IRCON. The evaluation of
these nominated directors is done by the holding company as per pre-defined criteria in line
with the guidelines of the Government of India. Hence, performance evaluation of Directors
is not applicable on your company.

SECRETARIAL STANDARDS:

During the period, the Company is in compliance with the applicable Secretarial Standards
issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India (ICSI).

APPLICATION/PROCEEDING PENDING UNDER INSOLVENCY & BANKRUPTCY
CODE, 2016

There are no proceeding initiated/ pending against the Company under the Insolvency &
Bankruptcy Code, 2016 which materially impact the business of the Company.

MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING (MoU):

Pursuant to the provision of Consolidated Memorandum of Understanding (MoU) Guidelines
dated 10" March, 2023 of Department of Public Enterprises (DPE), Companies, that are
subsidiary company of a CPSE, will sign Annual MOU with its holding company and holding
company is free to take a decision regarding exemption from MoU for its subsidiary
companies and process of exemption shall ordinarily be completed by 31st of March of the
base year.

Your Company, incorporated as wholly owned subsidiary of IRCON (holding company) and
Special Purpose Vehicle (SPV), will sign Annual MoU with IRCON.

13
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During the period under review, your Company requested IRCON to grant it exemption from
compliance of Annual MOU exercise for the FY 2024-25, in line with the MOU Guidelines
and IRCON vide its letter dated 215 March, 2024 has granted exemption to the Company.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT:

We thank Ircon International Limited, Ministry of Road Transport & Highways (MORTH)/
National Highway Authority of India (NHAI), various other Government Agencies, Banks,
Comptroller & Auditor General of India (CA&G) and Statutory Auditors, for their support, and
look forward to their continued support in the future.

We thank our Contractors and Sub-contractors for their continued support during the year.
We also place on record our appreciation for the contribution made by our employees at all
levels. Our consistent growth was made possible by their hard work, solidarity, cooperation
and support.

For and on behalf of Board of Directors
of Ircon Haridwar Bypass Limited

Sd/-
(Masood Ahmad)
Chairman
DIN: 09008553

Date: 2"¢ August, 2024
Place: New Delhi
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FORM NO. AOC-2

ANNEXURE - A

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8 (2) of the

Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the
Company with related parties referred to in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the
Companies Act, 2013 including certain arm’s length transactions under third proviso
thereto during the period from 1%t April, 2023 to 315t March, 2024

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm’s length basis: NIL
2. Details of material contracts or arrangements or transactions at arm’s length basis: as follows

commercial
operation date
and

for Rs.784.58 crore

Salient terms of | Date(s)
Duration of the | the Contracts or | of
Nature of contracts .
Sr. contracts or | Arrangements or | approval | Amount paid as
or arrangements or . . .
No. t : arrangements | Transactions by the advances, if any:
ransactions . . . .
or transactions | including the | Board, if
value, if any any:
730 Days from Mobilization
date of Advance given to
appointment sub-contractor
and Operation & | EPC agreement amounts to
maintenance for | executed on 2 Rs.24.78 crore.
1. | EPC Agreement 5 years from September, 2022 ) Outstanding

Mobilization
Advance of
Rs.20.62 crore as
on 31.03.2024

Lease Agreement
2 (To take on lease the
* | Office Premises of
IRCON)

Two Year
(01.04.2023 to
31.03.2025)

Lease Agreement
executed on 5t
April, 2023 for rent
@ Rs.23,359/-
p.m. plus GST.

NIL
(As on Date)

Date: 2"¢ August, 2024
Place: New Delhi

For and on behalf of Board of Directors
of Ircon Haridwar Bypass Limited
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Chairman
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RAVI RAMESH & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants e

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of
IRCON HARIDWAR BYPASS LIMITED

Report on the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statement

We have audited the accompanying Standalone Financial Statements of IRCON HARIDWAR
BYPASS LIMITED (“the Company”) which comprises the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2024, the
Statement of Profit and Loss, Statement of Changes in Equity and Statement of Cash Flows for
the year then ended and Notes to the Financial Statements including a summary of material
accounting policies and other explanatory information (herein after referred to as “Standalone
Financial Statements”.

Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act,
2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the
Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules,2015, as amended, (“Ind AS”) and other accounting
principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2024,
the profit and total comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year
ended on the date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the Ind AS financial statements in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities
under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Ind AS Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in
accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
(ICAI) together with the independence requirements that are relevant to our audit of the
financial statements under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules made there
under, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the ICAI’s Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the financial statements.

Key Audit Matters
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance

in our audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the Ind AS financial statements as a whole, and in
forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

We have determined that there are no Key Audit Matters to communicate in our report.
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Information Other than the Ind AS Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information.
The other information comprises the information included in the Company’s annual report but
does not include the Ind AS financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the Ind AS financial statements does not cover the other information and we do
not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the Ind AS financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our
audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of
this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Ind AS Financial Statements
The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these Ind AS financial
statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance, changes
in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, including the Indian accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133
of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015,as amended from
time to time.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with
the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the company and for preventing and
detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting
policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to
the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate
the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting
process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is 2 high level of assurance, but
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
'material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
eco »omic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.
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As part of an audit in accordance with SA’s, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

* Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

« Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section143(3)(i) of the
Companies Act, 2013, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the
company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls.

+ Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

« Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

+« Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the Ind AS financial statements that,
individually or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably
knowledgeable user of the financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative
materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating
the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the
financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, related safeguards.
From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the Ind AS financial statements of the
current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
.+ auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when,
-I-:i\nextremely rare circurnstances, we determine that a mattershould not be communicated in our
iCreport because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
tweigh the public interest benefits of such com munication.
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report)Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the
Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11)of section 143 of the Companies Act,
2013, we give in the Annexure A, a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and
4 of the Order, tothe extentapplicable.

2. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we reportthat:

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best
of our knowledge and belief were necessary forthe purposes of ouraudit.

b. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

c. The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive
Income), and the Cash Flow Statement and the Statement of Change in Equity dealt with
by this Report are in agreement with the books of account.

d. In our opinion, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements comply with the Indian
Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7
of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

e. Beingagovernment company, provision of section 164(2) of the Act are not applicable
pursuant to the notification No. G.S.R.463(E) dated 5th June 2015, issued by the Central
Government of India.

f. With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting
of the company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate
Report in “Annexure B”.

g. Being a government company, provision of section 197 of the Act are not applicable
vide notification no. GSR 463 (E) dated 5th June 2015, issued by the Central
Government of India.

h. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance
with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 as amended, in our
opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us:

i. The Company does not have any pending litigations which would have a material
impact on its financial position.

ii. Based on the assessment made by the Company, there are no material
foreseeable losses on long-term contracts that may require any provisioning. The
Company did not have any derivative contracts for which there were any material
foreseeable losses.

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred, to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company

iv. (a) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief,
no funds (which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been
advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium
or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other person
or entity, including foreign entity (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether,
directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any
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manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or
provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(b) The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and
belief, no funds (which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have
been received by the Company from any person or entity, including foreign entity
(“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest
in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf
of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security
or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(c) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and
appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused
us to believe that the representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e),
as provided under and (b) above, contain any material misstatement.

v. The Company has not proposed, declared or paid any final or interim dividend
during the period and until the date of this report, therefore, the reporting under
clause is not applicable.

vi.  Based on our examination, which include test checks the company has used an
accounting software for maintaining its books of accounts which has a feature
of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and same has operated throughout the
year for all relevant transactions recorded in the software. Further during the
course of our audit, we did not come across any instance of audit trail feature
being tempered with.

As Proviso to Rule 3(1) of the companies (Accounts) Rules 2014 is applicable
from April 1 2023, reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and
Auditors) Rule 2014 on preservation of audit trail as per the statutory
requirements for record retention is not applicable for the financial year ended
March 31,2024.

3. As required by Section 143(5) of the Act and as per directions issued by Comptroller
and Auditor General of India, we report that:

through IT system? If yes, the implications of
processing of accounting transactions outside
IT system on the Integrity of the accounts
along with the financial implications, if any,
may be stated.

S.No| Directions Auditor’s Replies
1 Whether the company has system in place to | Company is using SAP system to
process all the accounting transactions | process all the accounting

transactions. As per the information
and explanation provided to us, no
accounting transactions have been
processed outside the |T System.

Whether there is any restructuring of an
existing loan or cases of waiver/write off of
debts/loans/interest etc. made by a lender to
the company due to the company's inability
to repay the loan? If yes, the financial impact

No, Company is having no case of any
restructuring of an existing loan or
cases of waiver/write off of
debts/loans/interest etc. made by a
lender to the company due to the
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may be stated. Whether such cases are
properly accounted for? (In case, lender is a
government company, then this direction is
also applicable for statutory auditor of lender
company).

company's inability to repay the loan.

Whether funds (grants/subsidy etc.)
received/receivable for specific schemes
from Central/State Government or its
agencies were properly  accounted
for/utilized as per its term and conditions?
List the cases of deviation

According to the information and
explanation given to us and as per our
examination of records, no funds have
been received/receivable for any
specific scheme from Central/State
Government or its agencies during the
period from 1% April 2023 to 31** March
2024,

M. No. 085785

uoiN- 240 & SHZS bk FIT RF| 0o

Date
Place

:10™" May,2024
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ANNEXURE ‘A’ TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our report
to the Members of Ircon Haridwar Bypass Limited of even date)

To the best of our information and according to the explanations provided to us by the Company and the
books of account and records examined by us in the normal course of audit, we state that:

i. (a) (A) The Company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details
and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment.

(B) The company is not having any intangible assets; hence this clause is not applicable.

(b) The Property, Plant and Equipment were physically verified by the management during the year and
no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

(¢) The company does not own any immovable properties during the period of audit

(d) The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right of Use of Assets)
or intangible asset during the year;

(e) No proceedings have been initiated or pending against company for holding any benami property
under Prohibition of Benami Transactions Act, 1988 and rules made thereunder.

ii. (a) The Company does not have any inventory and hence reporting under clause 3 (ii) (a) of the Order
is not applicable.

(b)  The Company has not been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of Rs five crores, in
aggregate, from banks or financial institutions during any point of time of the year on the basis of
security of current assets. Accordingly, the requirement to report under clause 3(ii)(b) of the Order
is not applicable to the Company.

il The Company has not made investments in, provided any guarantee or security, granted any loan or
advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, Limited Liability
Partnerships, and any other parties, during the period. Hence, reporting under Paragraph 3(iii) (a), (b),
(c), (d) ,( e) and (f) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

iv. The Company has not granted any loan, made investment, and provided guarantee and security to which
the provisions of section 185 and 186 of the companies Act 2013 are applicable. Hence, Paragraph 3(iv)
of the order is not applicable to the Company.

V. The Company has neither accepted any deposits from the public nor accepted any amounts which are
deemed to be deposits within the meaning of Sections 73 to 76 of the Companies Act, and rules made
there under, to the extent applicable. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(v) of the Order

is not applicable to the Company.

vi. The Company has maintained cost records as required under section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013.
However, we are neither required to carry out, nor have carried out any detailed examination of such

accounts and records.

Vil In respect of statutory dues:

_——.(a) The Company is regularin depositing undisputed statutory dues, including Provident Fund, Income
x, goods and service Tax, Sales tax, service tax, duty of Custom, duty of Excise, Value Added Tax,
ss and any other statutory dues applicable with the appropriate authorities. Employees State
urance is not applicable to the Company. According to the information and explanation given
us and based on audit procedures performed by us, there are no undisputed statutory dues

A B Ao
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which were outstanding as on 31.03.2024 for a period of more than six months from the date the
same become payable.

(b) According to the information and explanation given to us, and as per examination of records of
the Company, there is no amount payable in respect of Goods and Services tax, Provident Fund,
Employees’ State Insurance, Income Tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, duty of Custom, duty of Excise,
Value Added Tax, Cess, which have not been deposited as on March 31, 2024 on account of any
disputes.

viii, There were no transactions which were not recorded in the books of accounts that have been

surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act,
1961(43 of 1961).

iX. (a) The Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowing or in the payment of
interest thereon to any lender.

(b) The Company has not been declared willful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or other
lender.

(c) The Company has applied term loan for the purpose for which loans were obtained.

(d) NoFunds raised on short-term basis have been used during the period for long-term purposes by
the Company.

(e) On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Cormpany, the Company has not taken
any funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of its subsidiaries and
joint ventures.

(f) The company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in its subsidiaries
or Joint Ventures companies and hence, the requirement to report on clause 3(ix)(f)of the Order is
not applicable to the Company.

X. (a) The Company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including
debt instruments) during the period and hence reporting under clause 3(x) (a) of the Order is not
applicable.

(b) The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or convertible
debentures (fully or partially or optionally convertible) during the year and hence, reporting under
clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

Xi. (a) No fraud by the Company or no fraud on the Company has been noticed or reported during the
year.
(b) No report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has been filed by cost auditor/
secretarial auditor or by us in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and
Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government.
(c) Asrepresented to us by the management, there are no whistle blower complaints received by the
Company during the period
Xii. The Company is not a Nidhi Company as per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 Therefore, the
requirements to report on clause under para 3(xii) (a), (b) & (c) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.
Transaction with related parties is in compliance with Section 177 and 183 of the Companies ﬁltct,— where
: -'-'_k-_L'ai‘,QlicabIe and the details have been disclosed in notes to the financial statements, as required by the
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Xiv. In our opinion the requirement of internal audit does not apply to the company.

xv.  The Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected
with its directors, and hence, requirement to report on clause 3(xv) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

xi. (a) The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-lA of the Reserve Bank of India Act,
1934(2 of 1934). Accordingly, requirement to report on clause 3(xvi) (a) of the Order is not applicable
to the company.

(b) The Company has not conducted any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance activities without
obtained a valid Certificate of Registration (CoR) from the Reserve Bank of India as per the Reserve Bank
of India Act, 1934.

(c) The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by the
Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(xvi)(c) of the Order is not
applicable

(d) There is no Core Investment Company as a part of the Group. Hence, the requirement to report on
clause 3(xvi)(d) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

Xvii. The Company has not incurred cash losses during the period covered by our audit.

xviii. There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year and accordingly requirement to
report on clause 3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

Xix. On the basis of the financial ratios disclosed in the note no 37 to the financial statements , ageing and
expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information
accompanying the financial statements and our knowledge of the Board of Directors and Management
plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to
our attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit
report indicating that Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance
sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however,
state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further state that our
reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor
any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will

get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

Xx. The provision of section 135 towards corporate social responsibility are not applicable to the company.
Accordingly, the provision of clause 3(xx) of the order is not applicable.

xxi. The reporting under clause(xxi) is not applicable in respect of audit of financial statements of the
company. Accordingly, no comment has been included in respect of said clause under this report.

M. No. 085785
Date :10'" May,2024
Place :New Delhi
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ANNEXURE ‘B’ TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 2(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our
report to the Members of ircon Haridwar Bypass Limited of even date)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of IRCON HARIDWAR BYPASS
LIMITED (“the Company”) as of March 31* 2024 in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements
of the company for the period ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on, “the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering
the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICA1)”. These
responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business,
including adherence to company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection
of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor’s Responsihility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls over financial
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing
prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of
internal financial controls, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards
and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial
reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material
respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal
financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial
controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal

- - ~financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the
__n'iéi'_ir']fénance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and

‘' dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are
. .régpr'tﬁéd as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally
ki 4 dptc accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only
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in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to
error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial
controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control
over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the Company
has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting and
such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2024,
“based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering
the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India”.

For RAVI RAMESH & ASSOCIATES

Ted Act:w‘»‘_"":-;
SUBHASH BANSA "
PARTNER
M. No. 085785

Date : 10" May,2024
Place :New Delhi
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[rcon Haridwar Bypass Limited
CIN:-U45209DL2022G0I1392406

Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2024
(AN amonnis in Tndian Rupees Lalds unless othervise siafed)

Particulars Note Asat As at
31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023
I. |ASSETS
1 Non-Current Assets
(a) Property, Plant and Equipment 3 0.44 032
(b) Deferred Tax Assets (net) 4 0.02 0.02
{c) Financial Assets
(i) Other Financial Assets § 0.01 0.01
(d) Other Non-Current Assets - =
Total Non-Current Assels 0.47 0.35
2 |Current assets
(a) Financial Assets 6
(1) Trade receivables 6.1 8128 =
(1) Cash and Cash Equivalents 62 52329 4482
{ni) Loans - -
{iv) Other Financial Assets 63 18,729.61 5.299.16
(b) Current Tax Assets (Net) 7 G8.46 0.03
(c) Other Current Assels § 5,153.47 141745
Total Current Assets 24.556.11 8,761.46
TOTAL ASSETS 24.556.58 8,761.81
1. |EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
1 Equity
(a) Equity Share Capital 9 5.00 5.00
(b) Other Equity 10 8,584.99 8.294 00
Total Equity 8,589.99 8,299.00
2 |Linbilities .
Non-Current Liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities
(1) Borrowings 11 11,296.42 =
(i1) Lease Liabilites - =
(1i1) Trade Payables
- total ding dues of micro prises and small enlerprises = =
- lotal owtstanding dues of creditors other than of micro enterprises and
small enterprises : :
(b) Deferred Tax Liabilities (net) 4 = :
Taotal Non-Current Liabilities 11,296.42 i
3 |Current Liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities
(i) Lease Liabilities 5 =
(it} Trade Payables 12
- total fing dues of micro and small enterprises 12.1 1.06 031
- total outslnn:!ing dues of creditors other than of micro enterprises and 121 - —
small enlerprises 4
(11) Other Financial Liabilities 122 599.28 6.58
(b} Other Current Liabiliti 13 29052 105.00
(¢} Current Tax Liabilities (Net) 14 - -
Tatal Current Linbilities 4,670.17 462.81
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 24,556,58 8,761.81
Summary of material accounting policies 1
The accompanying notes are an Integral part of the financial statements. 1to39
As per our report of even date For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
For Ravi Ramesh & Associales ; Ircon Hanidwar Bypass Limited
IC Al Firm Registration No. : (04306N .
ered Accauniants &
FRIN 004376 N
' NEW DELHI Alin Roy Choudhury Masood Al
b Direclor Director
(DIN:-10489550) (DIN:- 3)

UDIN:

Place: New Delhi
Date :10.05.2024
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Ircon Haridwar Bypass Limited
CIN:-U45209DL2022G01392406

Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31st March 2024
(AN nennts in Indian Rupecs Lakhs unless othenvise stated)

! For the period from 13th
= For n
Farticulars Nave ’ ;Ilwtlgelal;l.lfl‘mEd inc:::'lo‘::gni{;ii (Jt::lmb::rch
2023
Income
Revenue from operations 15.1 21,870.48 5,205.63
Okl iigas 15.2 249.86 103.92
Tatal Incomie (A) 22,12034 5,309.55
Expenses
Project Expenses 16 21,296.93 5,129.84
Employee benefits expenses 17 419 24.79
Finance Costs 18 31875 5.64
Depreciation and amortization expenses 3 0.13 0.10
Other expenses H 9360 45.90
Tatal expeises (B) 21,759.32 5,206.27
Profit/(Loss) before tax (A-B) 361.02 103.28
Tax expenses 4
Current tax 90.86 26.24
Tax adjustment of earlier years (0.64)
Deferred tax (net} - (0.02)
90.12 26.22
Profit/(Loss) for the period 270.80 77.06
Other comprehensive income/{loss)
A) ltems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Income tax relating to Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
B) Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss
Income tax relating to Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss
Other comprehensive income/(loss) for the period (net of tax) - -
Tatal Comprehensive income/(loss) for the period 270.80 77.06
arnings per equity share (Face Value Per Equity Share Rs, 10) 24
Basic
541.60 154.12
Oliuted 54160 154.12
S v of material ac ing policies 2
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the Minancial statements. 1to 39

As per our report of even date
For Ravi Ramesh & Associates

ICAI Firm Registration No.- 004306N .

hartered Accountants

FRN 004306 N
NEW DELHI

Place: New Delhi
Date :10.05.2024

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Ircon Haridwar Bypass Limited

Alin Roy Chaudhury a<_
Dircetor

(DIN:-10489550) {DIN:-09008553)

Mnsond_}_l“

Director
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Ircon Haridwar Bypass Limited
CIN:-U45209DL2022G 01392406
Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31st March 2024

(AN amounts in Indian Rupees Lakhs unless othervise stated)

For the year ended For the period from 13th
31.03.2024 January 2022 (Date of
Particulars incorporation) to 31st
March 2023
A. Cash flow from operating activities
Profit before tax 361.02 103.28
Adjustments for;
Depreciation/Amortization 0.13 0.10
Interest Income (2.43) (103.92)
Interest Expenses 318.75 0.64
Loss on disposal of assets 0.03 -
Bad Debts - B
Tax for the Earlier Years - -
Operating profit before working capital changes 677.48 0,10
Movements in working capital:
Increase/(decrease) in other non-current liability - -
Increase/(decrease) in other current financial liabilities 592,71 6.58
Increase/(decrease) in Current Trade Payables 3,429 14 351.23
Increase/(decrease) in other non-current financial liabilities - -
Increase/(decrease) in other current liability 185.52 105.00
Increase/(decrease) in non-current provisions . -
Increase/(decrease) in current provisions ~ -
Decrease/(increase) in trade receivables (81.28) -
Decrease/(increase) in inventories ™
Decrease/(increase) in non current financial loans - -
Decrease/(increase) in Loans & current financial assets (13,430.14) (5.299.16)
Decrease/(increase) in Current tax Asset (Net) 0.66 -
Decrease/(increase) in other Non-current assets - (0.01)
Decrease/(increase) in other current assets (1.736.00) (3,417.45)
Cash Generated from Operation (10,361.91) (8,253.71)
Less - Income Tax Paid 159.33 2627
Net cash flow from/(used in) operating activities (A) (10,521.24) (8,279.98)
B. Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of PPE (0.45) (0.42)
Sale of PPE 0.17 -
Interest [ncome 2.14 103.92
Net cash flow from/(used in) investing activities (B) 1.86 103.50
C. Cash flow from financing activities
Proceeds from borrowing (net) 11,296.42 =
Proceeds from fresh issue of share capital - 5.00
Interest expenses (318.75) (0.64)
Loan From Ircon International Limited as quasi capital 20.18 8.216.94
Net cash flow from/(used in) in financing activities (C) 10,997.85 8,221.30
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) 478.47 44 82
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the period 44 82 -
Closing cash and cash equivalents 523.29 44.82
Particulars As at As at
31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023
Components of cash and cash equivalents*
- Cash on hand - -
- With banks in current account 9.29 5.02
- Deposit with original maturity of less than 3 months 514.00 39.80
523.29 44.82

Total cash and cash equivalent

sas per Balance Sheet and Statement of Cash Flows

*Earmarked Fund
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4. Reconciliation of Liabilities arising from financing activities as on 31.03.2024

Particulars

Loan From SBi

Interest on Loan from
SBI

Opening balances
Cash flows:

- Repayments (0.58) (318.75)
- Proceeds 11,297.00 31875
Closing balances 11,296.42 o

Reconciliation of Liabilities arising from financing activitics as on 31.03.2023

Particulars

Loan From SBI

Interest on Loan from
SBI

Opening balances
Cash flows:

- Repayments

- Proceeds

Closing balances

Notes:
1. Figures in brackets indicate cash outflow

2. The Statement of Cash flows has been prepared under the Indirect method set out in Ind AS-7 'Statement of Cash Flow' notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting

Standards) Rules, 2015,

3. Reconciliation of Cash and Cash Equivalents and Components of Cash and Cash Equivalents included in the above Statement of Cash Flows:

Summary of material accounting policies 2

The accompanying notes arce an Integral part of the financial statements. 1to39

As per our report of even date For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
For Ravi Ramesh & Associates Ircon Haridwar Bypass Limited

ICAI Firm Registration No. : 004306N ————
Chartered Accountants

Alin Roy Choudhu
Director
(DIN:-10489550)

UDIN:

Place: New Delhi
Date :10,05.2024
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Ircon Haridwar Bypass Limited
CIN:-U45209DL2022G0OI392406

Statement of changes in equity for the year ended 31st March 2024

(Al amounts in Indien Rupees Lakhs walesy otherwise stated)

(a) Equity Share Capital

Particulars

Amount

Balance as at 13th January, 2022

Changes in equity share capital during the year 5.00
Balance as at 31st March 2023 5.00
Balance as at 01st April, 2023 5.00
Changes in equity share capital during the year -
Balance as at 31st March 2024 5.00

(b) Other Equity

Particulars Reserves & Surplus | Other Comprehensive Quasi equity Total

Income

Retained Earnings
Balance as at 13th January, 2022 - - . -
Profit for the year 77.07 - - 77.07
Other Comprehensive income - - - -
Total Comprehensive Income for the period 77.07 - - 77.07
Addition in Quasi Equity - - 8,216.94 8,216.94
Balance as at 31st March 2023 77.07 - 8,216.94 8,294.01
Balance as at 01st April 2023 77.07 - 8,216.94 8,294.01
Total profit for the period 270.80 - - 270.80
Other comprehensive income for the period - - 2 -
Total comprehensive income for the period 270.80 - 270.80
Addition in Quast Equity - 20.18 20.18
As at 31st March, 2024 347.87 - 8,237.12 8,584.99
Summary of material accounting policies 2
1to 39

The accompanying notes are an Integral part of the financial statements.

As per our report of cven date
For Ravi Ramesh & Assnciates———F —

UDIN:

Place: New Delhi
Date :10.05.2024
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ii.

ifi.

Ircon Haridwar Bypass Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

Corporate Information

Ircon Haridwar Bypass Limited (the “Company”) is domiciled and incorporated in India and is a wholly
owned subsidiary of Ircon International Limited (IRCON), public sector construction company domiciled in
India. The Company (CIN U45209DL2022G0I392406) is incorporated under the provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 applicable in India.

The Company came into existence when IRCON was awarded the work of upgradation & construction of
four laning of Haridwar Bypass Package-I from Kmo+ooo (Km 188+100 of NH-58) to Km 15+100(
Kms5+100 of NH-74) in the state of Uttarakhand on Hybrid Annuity basis In pursuant to the provisions of
“Request for Proposal”, the selected bidder TRCON’ has formed a Special Purpose Vehicle (SPV) named
Ircon Haridwar bypass Limited as wholly owned subsidiary of IRCON, incorporated on 13.01.2022.
Accordingly, the Company has signed the Concession Agreement with NHAI on 8% March, 2022 for the
project value amounting to Rs 861 Crore. The Concession period is 15 years from Commercial Operation
Date (COD) and Construction period is 730 days from Appointed Date. The registered office of the company
is located at C-4, District Centre, Saket, New Delhi- 110017.

The financial statements are approved for issue by the company's Board of Directors in their meeting held
on 10.05.2024

Material accounting policies
Basis of preparation of Financial Statements

Statement of compliance

The Standalone Financial Statements of the Company have been prepared on going concern basis following
accrual system of accounting and in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in India,
including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013
read together with Rule 3 of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended from
time to time) and presentation requirements of Division II of Schedule III to the Companies Act, 2013, (Ind
AS compliant Schedule III), as applicable to the standalone financial statements.

Basis of measurement

The Standalone Financial Statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention except for the
following assets and liabilities which have been measured at fair value:

s Certain financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value.

Functional and Presentation Currency

These Standalone Financial Statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR) which is the Company’s
functional currency. All amounts have been rounded to the nearest Lakhs up to two decimals except for per
share data, unless otherwise stated.
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2,2,

2.2.3.

Ircon Haridwar Bypass Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

Summary of material accounting policies

A summary of the material accounting policies applied in the preparation of the financial statements are as
given below. These accounting policies have been applied consistently to all periods presented in the
financial statements.

Current and non-current classification

Based on the time involved between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realization in cash and
cash equivalents, the Company has determined twelve months as its operating cycle for the purpose of
classification of its assets and liabilities as current and non-current in the balance sheet.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment are initially stated at their cost.

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment includes:

(a)its purchase price, including import duties and non-refundable purchase taxes, after deducting trade
discounts and rebates;

(b) Cost directly attributable to the acquisition of the asset which incurred in bringing the asset to the
location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management.

Property, plant and equipment are subsequently measured at cost net of accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses, if any. Subsequent costs are included in the assets carrying amount or
recognized as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is provided on straight line basis over the estimated useful
lives of the assets as specified under part C of schedule II of the Companies Act, 2013 and disclosed in the
notes to accounts. The residual values is not more than 5% of the original cost of assets.

Property plant and equipment écquired during the period, individually costing up to ¥5000/- are fully
depreciated, by keeping Re. 1 as token value for identification. However, Mobile phones provided to
employees are charged to statement of profit and loss irrespective of its value.

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each financial year-end.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with carrying amount. These are
included in profit or loss within other gains/(losses).

Impairment of non-financial assets

At each reporting date, the Company reviews the carrying amounts of its non-financial assets to determine

- whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the
' asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any).

If such assets are considered to be impaired, the impairment to be recognized in the Statement of Profit

and Loss is measured by the amount by which the carrying value of the assets exceeds the estimated

recoverable amount-6f the asset.
//l‘: G "__"‘15:'-%
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Ircon Haridwar Bypass Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

2.2.4. Revenue Recognition

£

The Company derives revenues primarily from the Service Concession Arrangement comprising the
construction and operation & maintenance services pertaining to an infrastructure (Road) on Hybrid
Annuity Mode.

Revenue from Service Concession Arrangement

The Company's contracts with the Customers for the construction and operation & maintenance services
under the Service Concession Arrangement (SCA) are accounted for as a single performance obligation as
contract is negotiated as a package with a single commercial objective and involves complex integration
of construction and maintenance services.

Revenue is recognized over the time using input method (i.e., percentage-of-completion method) which is
consistent with the transfer of control to the customer because there is a direct relationship between the
Company's effort (i.e., cost incurred) and the transfer of service to the customer. Under input method,
contract revenue is recognized as revenue by reference to the stage of completion as at the reporting date.
The stage of completion is measured in terms of a proportion of actual cost incurred to-date, to the total
estimated cost attributable to the performance obligation. However, where the Company is not be able to
reasonably measure the outcome of a performance obligation, but the Company expects to recover the
costs incurred in satisfying the performance obligation, the Company recognises revenue only to the extent
of the costs incurred until such time that it can reasonably measure the outcome of the performance
obligation. A cumulative catch-up adjustment would be recognized in the period in which the entity is able
to reasonably measure its progress. Changes to total estimated contract costs, if any, are recognized in the
period in which they are determined as assessed at the contract level.

Any expected losses on contracts in progress are charged to statement to profit & Loss, in total, in the
period the losses are identified.

Revenue is measured at the transaction price that is allocated to the performance obligation and is
adjusted for variable considerations. Variability in the transaction price arises primarily due to liquidated
damages, price variation clauses, incentives, change in law etc. The Company recognizes revenue for
variable consideration when it is probable that a significant reversal in the amount cumulative revenue
recognized will not occur. The company estimates the amount of revenue to be recognized on variable
consideration using most likely amount method. Consequently, amounts allocated to a satisfied
performance obligation are recognized as revenue, or as a reduction of revenue, in the period in which the
transaction price changes.

Contract balances

Contract assets

If the Company performs by transferring goods or services to a customer before the customer pays
consideration or before payment is due, a contract asset is recognized for the earned consideration that is
conditional. The portion of the payments retained by the customer until final contract settlement is not
considered a significant financing component since it is usually intended to provide customer with a form
of security for Company’s remaining performance as specified under the contract, which is consistent with

g o

the industry practi.cfé ;
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ii.

2.2.6.

Ircon Haridwar Bypass Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

Trade receivables

A receivable represents the Company’s right to an amount of consideration that is unconditional (i.e., only
the passage of time is required before payment of the consideration is due). Trade receivable are
recognized initially at the transaction price as they do not contain significant financing components. The
Company hold the trade receivable with the objective of collecting the contractual cash flows and therefore
measure them subsequently at amortized cost using the effective interest rate method less loss allowance.

Contract liabilities

If a customer pays consideration before the Company transfers goods or services to the customer, a
contract liability is recognized when the payment is made, or the payment is due (whichever is earlier).
Contract liabilities are recognized as revenue when the Company performs under the contract.

Financial Assets Under Service Concession Arrangements (Appendix C to Ind AS 115 —
Revenue from Contracts with Customers)

The Company recognize a financial asset to the extent that it has an unconditional contractual right to
receive cash or another financial asset from or at the direction of the grantor (“NHAI”) for the construction
services and Operation & Maintenance services.

Such financial assets are initially measured at fair value and subsequently at amortized cost using the
Effective Interest Rate (EIR) method.

Other income

Interest income is recognized using Effective Interest rate method.

All other income is accounted on acerual basis when no significant uncertainty exists regarding the amount
that will be received.

Borrowing cost

Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that the Company incurs in connection with the
borrowing of funds and are charged to statement of profit and loss in the period in which they are incurred
except when it meets the criteria for capitalization as part of qualifying assets as per Ind AS 23.

Taxes
Tax expense comprises current tax and deferred income tax.
Current income Tax

Current tax is determined as the tax payable in respect of taxable income for the period and is computed
in accordance with relevant tax regulations.

Current income tax is recognized in statement of profit and loss. Management periodically evaluates
positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject
to interpretatigg- nd.establishes provisions where appropriate.

[X I
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ii.

Ircon Haridwar Bypass Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

Current tax assets and tax liabilities are offset where the entity has a legally enforceable right to offset and
intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Deferred Tax

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax bases of
assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred
tax asset to be utilized. Unrecognized deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are
recognized to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profit will allow the deferred tax
asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax
assets and liabilities and when the deferred tax balances relate to the same taxation authority.

Employee Benefits

Short Term Employee Benefits

Employee benefits such as salaries and wages, short term compensated absences, and Performance
Related Pay (PRP) falling due wholly within twelve months of rendering the service are classified as short-
term employce benefits and undiscounted amount of such benefits are expensed in the statement of profit
and loss in in the period in which the employee renders the related services.

Post-employment benefits & other Long Term Employee Benefits

The employees of the Company are on deputation from Ircon International Limited, Holding Company.
The post employee benefits & other long term employee benefits includes gratuity, provident fund, post-
retirement medical facility, pension, leave encashment and leave travel concession.

As per arrangement with the Ircon International Limited, Holding Company, the cost in relation to post
employee & other long term Employee Benefits will be reimbursed to the holding Company on the basis
of fixed contribution based on basic pay and dearness allowance for the period of services rendered in the
Company.

The companies liability with respect to the long term employee benefit is limited to the extent of fixed
contribution to be paid to the holding company. Actual settlement of the long term employee liability will
be the responsibility of holding company.

The Contractual employees of the Company are not eligible for post employee benefits & other long term
employee benefits.
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2.2.8.

2.2.9.

2,2.10.

Ircon Haridwar Bypass Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of presentation in the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents includes
unrestricted cash and short-term deposits with original maturities of three months and less that are readily
convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of change in value.

Contingent liabilities & contingent assets
Contingent liabilities

Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there is a possible obligation or present obligations that may but
probably will not, require an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits or the amount of such
obligation cannot be measured reliably. When there is possible obligation or a present obligation in respect
of which likelihood of outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is remote, no provision or
disclosure is made.

These are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates.

Contingent assets

Contingent assets are not recognized though are disclosed, where an inflow of economic benefits is
probable.

Leases

" The Company assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. That is, if the

2.2.11.

contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period in exchange for
consideration.

Company as a lessee
Short Term leases

The company has elected not to recognize ROU and lease liabilities for short term leases that have a lease
term of twelve months or less. The company recognises lease payments associated with these leases as an
expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Financial instruments

The Company recognises financial assets and financial liabilities when it becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets

a) Initial recognition and measurement

All financial assets (excluding trade receivables which do not contain a significant financing component,
being measured at transaction price) are recognized initially at fair value plus transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition of financial asset. Transaction costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of financial assets carried at fair value through profit or loss are expensed in statement of profit
and loss.
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ii.

Ircon Haridwar Bypass Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

b) Subsequent measurement
Subsequent measurement of financial asset depends on the Company business model for managing the
asset and the cash flow characteristics of the asset. The Company classifies its financial asset as:

Financial assets at amortized cost

After initial measurement, the financial assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows where
those cash flow represent solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount
outstanding are measured at amortized cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) method. Interest income
from these financial assets is included in other income.

Impairment of financial assets

The Company applies the expected credit loss (ECL) model for recognizing impairment loss on financial
assets measured at amortized cost, trade receivables, and other contractual rights to receive cash or other
financial asset.

For trade receivables and contract assets, the Company follows 'simplified approach’ and measures the
loss allowance at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses. :

For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the Company determines
that whether there has been a significant increase in the credit risk since initial recognition. If credit risk
has not increased significantly, 12-month ECL is used to provide for impairment loss.

¢) Derecognition of financial assets

The Company derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows frorn the
financial asset expire or it transfers the financial asset and the transfer qualifies for derecognition under
Ind AS 109.

The difference between the carrying amount and the amount of consideration received / receivable is
recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

Financial liabilities
a) Initial recognition and measurement
All financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value and, in the case of borrowings, net of directly

attributable transaction costs.

The Company’s financial liabilities include borrowings, trade and other payables and other financial
liabilities.

b) Subsequent measurement
The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:

Financial liabilities at amortized cost

After initial recognition, borrowings trade payables and other financial liabilities are subsequently
measured at amomze:d:t;ost usmg the EIR (Effective Interest Rate) method. Amortized cost is calculated

.-/‘
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2.2.12,

2.2.13.

2.2.14.

2.2.15.

Ircon Haridwar Bypass Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part
of the EIR. The EIR amortization is included as finance costs in the statement of profit and loss.

¢) Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability (or a part of a financial liability) is derecognized from the Company's Balance Sheet
when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged or cancelled or expires.

Fair value measurement

The company measures financial instruments at fair value at each reporting period.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured, are disclosed in the financial statements. Such
assets and liabilities are categorised within the level 3 (Valuation techniques for which the lowest level
input that is significant to the fair value measurement is unobservable) of fair value hierarchy.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would
use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best
interest.

Earnings Per Share

In determining basic earnings per share, the company considers the net profit attributable to equity
shareholders. The number of shares used in computing basic earnings per share is the weighted average
number of shares outstanding during the period.

In determining diluted earnings per share, the net profit attributable to equity shareholders and weighted
average number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effect of all dilutive potential
equity shares.

Prior Period Adjustment

Errors/omissions discovered in the current year relating to prior periods are treated as immaterial and
adjusted during the current year, if all such errors and omissions in aggregate does not exceed 0.50% of
total operating revenue as per last audited financial statement of the Company.

Significant accounting estimates and judgements

The preparation of Standalone Financial Statements requires the management to make judgements,

' accounting estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and

liabilities, and the accompanying disclosures. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could
result in outcomes thatrequire a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected
in future periods.

This note provides an overview of the areas that involved a higher degree of judgement or complexity, and
of items which are more likely to be materially adjusted due to estimates and assumptions turning out to
be different than those originally assessed.

Significant areas of estimation and judgements as stated in the respective accounting policies that have
the most significant effect on the financial statements are as follows:
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iii.

iv.

Ircon Haridwar Bypass Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

Allowances for uncollected trade receivables

Trade receivables do not carry interest and are stated at their nominal values as reduced by appropriate
allowances for estimated irrecoverable amount are based on ageing of the receivable’s balances and
historical experiences. Individual trade receivables are written off when management deems not be
collectible.

Contingencies

In the normal course of business, contingent liabilities may arise from litigation and other claims against
the company. There are certain obligations which managements have concluded based on all available
facts and circumstances are not probable of payment or difficult to quantify reliably and such obligations
are treated as contingent liabilities and disclosed in notes Although there can be no assurance of the final
outcome of legal proceedings in which the company is involved. it is not expected that such contingencies
will have material effect on its financial position of probability.

Impairment of financial assets

The impairment provision for financial assets are based on assumptions about risk of default and expected
loss rates. The company uses judgement in making these assumptions and selecting the inputs to the
impairment calculation, based on the company’s past history, credit risk, existing market conditions as
well as forward looking estimates at the end of each reporting period.

Taxes

Uncertainties exist with respect to the interpretation of complex tax regulations, changes in tax laws, and
the amount and timing of future taxable income. Given the nature of business differences arising between
the actual results and the assumptions made, or future changes to such assumptions, could necessitate
future adjustments that will impact the current and deferred income tax assets and liabilities in the period
in which such determination is made. The company establishes provisions, based on reasonable estimates.

Deferred tax assets are recognized for unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit
will be available against which the losses can be utilized. Significant management judgement is required
to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognized, based upon the likely timing and
the level of future taxable profits together with future tax planning strategies.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The entity assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired.
Determining the recoverable amount of the assets is judgmental and involves the use of significant
estimates and assumptions. The estimates are based upon assumptions believed to be reasonable, but
which are - inherently ‘uncertain' and unpredictable and do not reflect unanticipated events and
circumstances that may occur.

Revenue recognition

The company’s revenue recognition policy, which is set out in Note 2.2.4, is central to how the company
values the work it has carried out in each financial year.

N |
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Ircon Haridwar Bypass Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

These policies require forecasts to be made of the outcomes of Contracts, which require, assessments and
judgements to be made on changes in scope of work and claims and variations.

The Company has incorporated significant judgements over contractual entitlements for long term
project. The range of potential outcomes could result in a materially positive or negative change to
underlying profitability and cash flow.

Estimates are also required with respect to the below mentioned aspects of the contract:

* Determination of stage of completion

« Estimation of project completion date

= Provisions for foreseeable loses

« Estimated total revenues and estimated total costs to completion, including claims and variations.

These are reviewed at each reporting date and adjust to reflect the current best estimates.
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3

Property, Plant and Equipment

Particulars

Computers

Total

As at 13th January 2022
Additions
Disposals/Adjustments
Transfer to Asset held for sale
Exchange Gain/ Loss

Gross Carrying Amount (At Cost)

As at 31st March 2023

As at 01st April 2023
Additions
Disposals/Adjustments
Transfer to Asset held for sale
Exchange Gain/ Loss

0.42
0.45
0.42

0.42
0.45
0.42

As at 31st March 2024

0.45

0.45

Depreciation and Impairment

As at 13th January 2022
Depreciation charge for the year
Impairment
Disposals/Adjustments
Transfer to Asset held for sale
Exchange Gain/ Loss

As at 31st March 2023

As at 01st April 2023
Depreciation charge for the year
Impairment
Disposals/Adjustments
Transfer to Asset held for sale
Exchange Gain/ Loss

0.10
0.13

0.22

0.10
0.13

0.22

As at 31st March 2024

0.01

0.01

|Net book value

As at 31st March 2024

0.44

0.44

As at 31st March 2023

0.32

0.32

Note:

(i) Depreciation is provided based on useful life of assets which is in line with the useful life prescribed in schedule II of the Companies Act,

2013 and disclosed as under:

Asset Class

Useful life adopted and as per
Schedule IT (in years)

Computer

3

(ii) There is no class of assets where the Company uses different useful life than those prescribed in Schedule ([ of the Companies Act, 2013,
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iUl et irs Trclion Fgnres Lakhes wrsliss osfrvinne o)

4 Delerved Tax Assets (Net)

A} Tl mujor components of incame Lax expense for the year ended 31st March 2024 . - st March 2023 are: -
For the period from 131h
| i Far the year ended January 2022 (Date of
Partioian 31032024 incorparation) to 31st March
223
Current income tix
Current incons: Lax clarge 0BG 16.24
Tax adjistmem ol earlier vears .64) -
Deferred tax
Relating 1o and reversal ol v dilfercnces (o)
Incomie tux expense reported in the statement of Profit and Loss 90,23 26.22
B The reconciliation af tax expense and the ing profit multiplied by ndia‘s ic tax rate for 315t March 2024 and 31 March 2023
For the period from 13th
Particutars For the vear ended Junuary 2022 (Date of
JLngaonzd incorporation) to 315t March
2023
1. Profiv{Loss) before i 36102 103,28
2. Corpormie lax rate as per Income Lk Act, 1961 23.17%| 25.17%)
3 Tax an accounding profit YU ET 26.00
4. Effect of tax adjustments
(i) Tax on oxpenses:
{n) Pre-incorparation expenses ooty ('R [}
(b} Imicrest on advance tax - 016
() Depreciation impact - (002
(di) Loss an Sale of Asscis = .
(e} Earlice year tax adjusinent (0.64) 5
(i) Deferred tx expenses { (income} - {002y
Total effect of tax adjusiments (0.65) 0.22
the statement al profit and Toss (3+4) NL22 16.22
24.09%, 23.30%
€) Componeat of deferred tax ussets any (labilities) in Balance Sheet and Stitement of Prafit and Loss
Fartientary Statements of Profit and Loss Balance Sheet Statements of Profit and Loss Balance Sheet
J1-Mar-24 J1-Mar-24 31-Mar-23 J1-Mlar-13
Pre-incarpormlion cxpense Dl 0.03 [UIZ [HEI )
Depreciation {01y ©.o1) 0.2 (0,01
Carry forward losses - - - -
Net delerred fax
Asseia{ Linbilitics) 0,00 (X[} [URIR] .02
D) ReMected in the Babance Sheet as follows:
Pty Asal As at
st March, 2024 35t March, 2023
Deferred tax asscls 003 004
Deferred tax liabifitics (0.01) .o
|Deferred Tax Assets/{ Linbilitics) (Net) 0.02 0.0z
E) Reconciliation of tax
Asat 3103.2024
Particulurs Balance Recognised in Statement of Profit Recognised in OCT Balance
As at 01t April 2023 (Net) and Loss As at 315t March 2024 (Net)
Pre-incorporilion cxpense 004 {001y - 003
Difference in Book depeeciation
and Income tax depreciation (0.02) 000 - (won)
Camry forvard losses - - - -
Net deferred tux Assetsi{Linhilit} 002 (0.00) - 0.02
A al 31.03.2023
P Balance Recognised in Statement of Profit Recognised in OCIH Balance
As at 13th Junuary 2022 and Lass As at 315t March 2023 (Net)
(Net)
'T'I\'.'-in:ol‘mnllmlﬂpcnsc - 004 - 004
Income tx deprecintion .02y = (0.02)
Net deferred tax Assews/{Linbilit] - .02 - oz
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5 Other Non-Current Financial Assets

6.1

Particulars

As at
31st March, 2024

As at
31st March, 2023

(Unsecured and considered good)
Security Deposit

0.01

0.01

Total

0.01

0.01

urrent Assets - Financial Assets

Trade Receivables

Particulars

As at
J1st March, 2024

As at
31st March, 2023

Secured considered good

Unsecured considered good 8128 -
Trade receivables which have significant increase in credit risk - -
Trade receivables-credit impaired - &

81.28 -
Less: Impainment allowance for doubtful trade receivables - -
Total 81.28 -
Note:

Trade Receivable Ageing Schedule for the year ended as at 31st March 2024 and 31st March 2023

For the year ended 31st March 2024

Particulars Unbilled Not Due OQutstanding for the year ended March 31st, 2024 from the due date of payment
Less than 6 | 6 months - 1 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years Total
monihs year

Undisputed Trade receivables — considered

vood * - - - 81.28 - - - 51.28
Undisputed Trade Receivables — which havel

stgruficant increase in credit risk - - - - - - - -
Undisputed  Trade K bles — credit

impaired N - - i = ] = =
Disputed Trade R bl idered good

Disputed Trade Receivables - which have

significant inerease in credit risk = 3 = = L 4 o a
Disputed Trade Receivables — credit impaired

- - = 81.28 - - - 8128

Impairment Allowance & e 5 2 = - i .
Total = = - 81.28 : z 4 81.28
*Trade receivables pertains to NHAI

For the year ended 315t March 2023
JParticulars Unbilled Not Due Outstanding for the year ended March 31st, 2023 from the due date of payment

Less than & | 6 months- 1 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years Total

Undisputed Trade receivables — considered
rood

Undisputed Trade Receivables — which have]
significant increase in eredit risk

Undisputed Trade Receivables — credit
impaired 4
Disputed Trade Receivabl dered pood

Disputed Trade Receivables - which have
fi i in eredit risk
Disputed Trade Receivables — credit impaired
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6.2 Current Financial Assets - Cash and Cash Equivalents

Particulars

As at
31st March, 2024

As at
31st March, 2023

Balances with banks:
Earmarked Funds*

- On current accounts 929 5.02
- Deposits with original maturity of less than 3 months 514.00 39.80
Total 523.29 44.82

* Rs. 523.29 lakhs held in escrow account & Deposits (3 st March 2023: Rs.44.82 lakhs held in escrow account & Deposits) which are earmarked fund as per

concession agreement entered with NHAL
s

6.3 Current Assets - Other Financial Assets

Particulars

As at
31st March, 2024

As at
31st March, 2023

(Unsecured and considered good)
Security Deposit
Contract Assets:

Contract Assets under SCA 17,711.59 5,205.63
Money Withheld by Client 1.000.52 2
Intt Receivable from holding company 17.18 93.53
Intt Receivable from Bank FDR 032 -
Recoverable from holding company - -
Total 18,729.61 5,299.16
7 Current Tax Assets (Net)
Particulars asat Asiat
31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023
Taxes Paid including TDS and Advance Tax (Net of provision for tax) 68.46 0.03
Total 68.46 0.03
8 Other Current Assets
As at As at

Particulars

31st March, 2024

31st March, 2023

(Unsecured and considered good)
Advances Recoverable from

-Goods & Services Tax (GST) 3,080.16 927.62
- Building cess receivable st -
Advances to

- Contractors (Holding Co) 2,061.67 2.478.00
- Others 0.04

Prepaid Expenses 11.60 11.83
Total 5,153.47 3.417.45
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9 Equity Share Capital

Particul Asat Asg gt
Mipiare 31st March, 2024 st March, 2023
Authorised Share Capital
50,000 (31.03.2023; 50,000) equity shares of Rs.10/- each 5.00 5.00
Issued, subscribed and fully paid-up shares
50,000 (31.03.2023: 50000) equity shares of Rs. 10/~ cach 5,00 5.00
Total issued, subscribed and fully paid-up share eapital 5.00 5.00
(a) Promoter's shareholding
Particulars Shares held by Promoter at the end of the period % change during the
Promoter Name No. of shares % of total shares period
As aB 15t March, 2024 Ircon International Limited 50,000 100% -
Outstanding at the end of the period 50,000 100% -
As aBlst March, 2023 Ircon International Limited 50,000 100% -
Outstanding at the end of the period 50,000 100% -
(b) Reconciliation of the shares out ling at the beginning and at the end of the reporting period
Particulars As at 31st March, 2024 As at 31st March, 2023
No. of Shares Amount in Lakhs No. of Shares Amount in Lakhs
Al the beginning of the period 50,000.00 5.00 - -
Issued during the period - - 50,000.00 5.00
Outstanding at the end of the period 50,000.00 5.00 50,000.00 5.00

(c) Terms/ rights attached to equity shares

(i) Voting

The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of 10 per share. Each holder of equity share is entitled to one vote per share,

(i) Liguidation

In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company, after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distnibution will be in
proportion to the number of equity shares held by the sharcholders

{iii) Dividend

The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the sharcholders in ensuing Annual General Meeting.

(d) Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company:

Particulars As at 31st March, 2024 As at 31st March, 2023
No. of Shares % holding in the class No. of Shares % holding in the
class
Equity S!l:lre_s of Rs. 10 each fully paid 50000 100% 50000 100%
{Ircon Inter | Limited and its nominees*

* 600 equity shares hold by nomince shareholders on behalf of the holding company.

(e) Holding Company "M/s Irean I ional Limited" is public sector construction company, halding 100% Equity Share of the company,
10 Other Equity
Particulars angt e I
31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023
Retained Earnings 34787 77.06
| Quasi Equity (Interest Free Loan From Ircon) §,237.12 821694
| Total 8,584.99 8,294.00
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i}

i)

12.1

Mavement as per below:
Retained Earnings -

Particulars Asat Asaal

31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023
Opening Balance 77.06 -
Transfer from surplus in of profit and loss 270.80 77.06
Closing Balance 347.87 77.06
gu: i Eﬂllitﬂlnteresl free Loan From Ircon)
Particulars Al it

31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023
Opening Balance B.216.94 =
Add: Receipt of Quasi Equity 20,18 8.216.94
Closing Balance 8,237.12 8,216.94

Nature and Purpose:
Retained Earnings

Retained Earnings represents the undistributed profits of the Company.

Quasi Equity

Quasi Equity represents equity contribution from the Holding Company in form of Interest free loan. The Company does nat have any repayment obligation and are defined as "Equity” in the concession

agreement with NHAL Accordingly, these are considered to be in the nature of equity instruments.

Non Current Financial Liabilities - Borrowings

Particulars

Asat
31st March, 2024

Asat
3lst March, 2023

Term Loan Secured
- From Banks 11,296.42 -
‘Total 11.296.42 -

# The company has applied term loan for the purpose for which loan were obtained
SBI has sanctioned rupee term loan of Rs 44,761 00 Lakhs.ncluding mobilisation advance bank guarantee of Rs. 9471 lakhs as sub limit of rupee term loan of Rs. 44761.00 lakhs . During the financial year
2023-24, 5BI has disbursed term loan of Rs 11297 00 Lakhs (315t March 2023: Nil) . The terms and conditions and detail of security are as under.

1) Details of Terms and Conditions:
(1) Interest rate to be charged on loan shall be 3M MCLR Plus spread of 0,00% with monthly rest

(11) Moratorium of 6 months from the date of SCOD/COD whichever is earlier
(1) Term Loan shall be repayable in 24 str d half-yearly Il . with the first repayment starting from the end of 12 months from the SCOD or COD whichever is earlier

{1v) Interest shall be paid monthly basis on the last of calender manth

2) Details of Security:
The credit facilities for the proposed praject, all interest, fees, commission and other monies in respect thereof shall be secured, of and to the extent permitted under the Concession Agreement by:

a) Furst charge onall the Borrower’s movables (except Project Assets), including movable plant and machinery, furniture, fixtures, vehicles and all ather movable assets, machinery spares, tools and accessories,

both present and future.

b} First hypothecation/charge and assignment of all monies lying the Escrow Account into which all the investments in the Project and all Project revenues, Recevables, shortfall to be received, Cash and
Pi ds are to be dep I provided that such charge over the Escrow Account shall only I be to the extent permissible as per the water fall of priorities specified in the Concession Agreement and

Escrow Agreement

¢) First charge on all the Borrower's bank

luding without | the Escrow Account, Debt Service Reserve Account and each of other accounts required 1o be created by the Borrower under any

Project Document or conlract, provided that the charge shall only be to the extent of water fall of the priorities as provided in the Escrow Agreement.
d} First charge on all intangibles {other than Project Assets) of the Borrower, including but not limited to goodwill, uncalled capital, and intellectual property rights, both present and future.

€} A first chargefassignment of all the rights, title, interests, benefits, claims and demands of the Borrower, both present and future, in :
- Concession Agreement and other Project Documents and Clearances,

(includi guarantees) and liquidated d (including Ci 1 D: ) and perft bond p

- letter of credit, g ided by any Project Participant under Project Documents; and

- all Insurance Contracts.
F) Charge on Unsecured Loans infused as Part of Promoter's Contnbution,
g} Corporate Guarantee of M/s [RCOMN International Limited will be available till receipt of first annuity or 180 days from COD, whichever is later

The Security such as assi of project d shall be created and perfected in favor of Security Trustee before first disbursement.

Current Liabilities - Financial Linbilities

Current Liabilities - Trade Payables

Particulars et Aval

315t March, 2024 3ist March, 2023
(a) Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises 3.06 031
(b) Other than Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises
- Contractor & Suppliers 14.88 30,29
- Related Parties 1,762.43 320.63
Total 3.780.37 351.23
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Notes: -

a) Disclosures as required under Compa.les Act, 2013/ Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (MSMED) are provided i Note 34,

Trade payables Ageing Schedule for the year ended as at 31st March 2024 and 31st March 2023

[Particulars Unbilled

Not due

Outstanding for the year ended as at 31st March, 2024 from the due da

¢ of payment

Less than 1 year

1-2 years

2-3 years

More than 3 years

Total

Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises 119

and small enterprises
Total ding dues of creditors other than
micro enterprises and small enterprises

1488

Disputed dues of micro enterprises and small -
enterprises

Disputed dues of creditors other than micro -
enterprises and small enterprises

1.87

3,762.43

306

377731

Particulars Unbilled

Not due

Oulslnm:linE for the year ended as at 31st March, 2023 from the due da

Less than 1 year

Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises 014
and small enterprises
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than

micro enterprises and small enterprises

30.00

Disputed dues of micra enterprises and small
enterprises

Disputed dues of creditors other than micro
enterprises and small enterprises

1-2 years

2-3 years

e of payment

More than 3 vears

Tatal

0.17

32092

12.2  Current Liabilities - Other Financial Liabilities

Particulars

As at

31st March, 2024

As al
31st March, 2023

Unsecured

Payable to Holding Company

Money withheld from hold I
Money withheld from Contractors
Other payable {including staff payable)

252
596.68
0.08

6.58

Total

599.28

6.58

13 Other Current Linbilitics

Particulars Asat Asat

31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023
Others
Statutory dues 290.52 105.00
Total 290.52 105.00

14 Current Tax Liabilitics (Net)

Particulars

Asat

31st March, 2024

As at
31st March, 2023

Provision for Income tax (Net of Advance tax & TDS)

Total

15.1 Revenue from operations

Particulars For the year ended For the period from 13th
31.03.2024 January 2022 {(Date of
incorporation) to 31st
March 2023
Contract revenue under SCA (Refer Note No 31} 21,870.48 5,205.63
Total 21,870.48 5,205.63
152 Other Income
Particulars For the year ended For the period from 13th
31.03.2024 January 2022 (Date of
incorporation) to 31st
March 2023
Interest Income:
Interest on mobilsation advances 24549 103.92
Interest on FDR - T 245 -
Interest on Income tax refund /,r: AL \ 1.92
Miscellaneous Income s i L2 - -
(A
Total 124 249.86 103.92

=1 \ef-:\'lp.rr.r.
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16  Projest Expenses

Parlclars For the yoi, «nded For the period from 13th
31.03.2024 January 2022 (Date of
incorporation) to 3ist
March 2023
Work Expenses 2123742 5,099.84
Inspection, Geo Techineal | igation & Survey Exp. Etc 59.51 30,00
Tatal 21,296.93 5,129.84

17 Emplayee benefits expenses

Particulars

For the year ended
31.03.2024

For the period from 13th
Jannary 2022 (Date of
incorporation) to 31st

March 2023

Salary & Wages 39.73 20.11
Coentribution to Provident and other Funds 290 144
|Retirement Benefits 528 324
Total 47.91 24.79

18 Finance Cost

Particulars For the year ended For the period from 13th
31.03.2024 January 2022 (Date of
incorporation) to 31st
March 2023
Interest Expense * 31875 0.64
Other Borrowing Cost
-Bank charges - 5.00
Total 318.75 5.64
* It includes interest on income tax Rs. Nil (Previous period Rs. 0.64 Lakhs.)
19 Other Expenses
Particulars For the year ended For the period feom 13th
31.03.2024 January 2022 (Date of
incorporation) to 31st
March 2023

Printing & Stationary expanses 0.04 0.06
Legal & Professional charges 1425 5.87
Auditor Remuneration 130 048
Pre-incorporation expense - 0.48
Rent 331 151
Rates and Taxes 0.01 -
Insurance 72,08 30.78
Travelling & Conveyance 041 L.11
Bank guarantee and other charges 4.04 1.60
Loss on sale of Assets 003 -
Miscell Expenses 0.13 0.01
Total 95.60 45.90

(i)  Payment to the Anditors

Particulars

For the year ended

For the period from 13th
January 2022 (Date of

31.03.2024 incorporation) to 31st
March 2023

Payment to the auditor’s for

- Statutory Audit Fee 0.65 025
- Tax Audit Fee 020 0,08
- Fee for Quarterly limited review 0.30 0.15
- Certification 0.15 -
Total 1.30 0.48
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20

21

22

23

Disclosure as per Ind AS 21 *The Effects of Changes in Fooreign Exchange Rates’
The amount of exchange difft -ences (net) credited/debited 10 the of profit and loss is Nil (F-evious Period: Nil)

Disclosure as per Ind AS 19 on Employee benefits
a. The employees in Ircon Haridwar Bypass Limited are posted on Deputation/secondment basis from lrcon Intemational Limited (Holding Company).

b. In terms of accounting policy of the Company (Note No. 2.2.7) and arrangement with the Holding Comy the provision for Reti Benefits such as provident

fund, pension, gratuity, post retirement medical benei‘ts. Leaves and other inal benefits of nominated employees is being made by Holding company in terms of [nd

AS-19. The amount paid or payable s p fund, ion, gratuity, post retirement medical benefits, Leaves and other terminal benefits to the holding
pany are included in "Employee Benefit E " (Nate I?).

¢. Provident Fund Contribution of the employees an ination/! | have been regularly deposited by the holding company with its P.F Trust.

Changes in accounting policies and disclosures
New and amended standards.

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has notified Companies {Indian A ing Standards) A d Rules, 2023 dated March 31, 2023 to amend the following Ind
AS which are effective for .'mnual penods beginning on or after Apal 1, 2023, The Company applied for the first-lime these amendments:

(i) Definition of A i -A d ‘lnlndASl

The amendments clarify the distinction b h in i hanges in accounting policies and the comection of errors. It has also been clarified

how entitics use measurement techniques and inputs to dewlop accnuntmg e_sllmi!tes

The amendments had no lmpn-:l an the Company’s fi I

(ii) Disel eol A g Policies - A | tolnd AS 1

The amendmems aim to help entities provide accounting policy disclosures that are more useful by replacing the requirement for entities to disclose their ‘significant’

ACC g policies with a req to disclose their ‘material’ accounting policies and adding suidance on how entitics apply the concept of matedality in making
decisions about accounting policy disclosures

The amendments have had an impact on the Company's disclosures of accounting policies, but not on the 1, recagnition or f ion of any items in the
C y's financial

F

(iii) Defermd Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising from a Single Transaction - Amendments to Ind AS 12

The amendments narrow the scope of the initial recognition exception under Ind AS 12, so that it no longer applies to (ransactions that give rise (o equal taxable and
deductible lemporary differences such as leases.

As a result of these amendments, the Company has to recognize a separate deferred 1ax asset in relation to its lease liabilities and a deferred tax liability in relation 1o its
right-of-use assets. Since, these balances qualify for offset as per the requirements of paragraph 74 of Ind AS 12, there is no impact in the balance sheet.

Related Party Disclosures
Disclosures in compliance with Ind AS 24 ‘Related Party Disclosures' are as under:
a) List of Related Partics
(i) Holding company
lrcon International Limited
(ii) Key Management Personnel (KMFP)
Non Executive Directors

Name Y
Shn Devendm Kumar Sharma (w.e.f 10th October 2022 1o 3 15t January 2024) Director from lrcon
Shri Masood Ahmad (w e.f. 1 3th January ,2022) Dircctor from Ircon
Shri Mugnnthan Boju Gowda (w.¢ £ 1 3th January, 2022) Dircetor from Ircon
Shn Alin Roy Choudhury (w e £, 02nd February, 2024 ) Dircctor from lreon

Remuneration lo Key Manag P |: Company had Part-time and Non Executive Directors during the financial year 2023-24 and 2022-23, nominated on
the Board by the Holding C:'mpa.ny. do not draw any ion from the Company. No sitting fee is paid to Part- time and Non Executive Directors.
b) Transactions with other related parties are as follows: (Rs. In Lakhs)
For the period from 13th
Name of related Nature off For the year ended January 2022 (Daie of
Netrs ol unnscinn party relationship 31.03.2024 incorporation) to 31st
March 2023
1} Reimbursement expenses 5.88 6.20
2) Rent Expense (inclusive of GST) 331 351
3} Investment in Equity Shares - 5.00
4) Warks Contract Ircon Intemational - 21,237.42 5,099.84
5) Loan from holding company- Quasi Equity Limited HotdlnwCompay 20.18 8,216.94
6) Mabilization advance 1o Holding Co - 2,478.00
7) Interest Income on mobilisation advance 24549 103.92
¢) Outstanding balances with the related parties are as follows: (Rs. In Lakhs)
Nature of transaction Name of related Nature of As at As at
i party relationship 31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023
Balance Payable as on reporting date 436164 32721
Equity Share Capital (Including Quasi equity) Ircon [ntermational 9 ) 824212 8221.94
Outstanding Mobilization advance to Holding Co Limited Hldlog Copipany e e
Including Interest Receivable on advance) = chlb

d) Terms and conditions of transactions with related parties

(i) Transactions with related parties are made on terms equivalent to those that prevail in anm's length transactions.

(i1) Balances payable of related panies at the reporting date are unsecured and settlement occurs through banking ions. These bal are interest free except
mobilization advance on which interest is charged at rate of average of one year MCLR of top 5 Scheduled commercial bank +1.25%.
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24 Earnings per share (EPS)

Disclosure as per Iud AS 33 'Earnings per share’

(a) Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the profit for the year atuibutable to equity holders by the weighted average number of equity shares auistanding during the

period.

(b) Diluted EPS is calculated by dividing the profit for the period attributable to the equity holders after considering the effect of dilutian by weighted average number of
equily shares outstanding during the period plus the weighted average number of equity shares that would be issued on conversion of all the diluiive poteniial equity

shares into cquity shares

(i) Basic and diluted earnings per share (in Rs.)

Eamings per share (Basic)
Eamings per share (Diluted)
Face value per share

Particulars Note For the year ended For the period from 13th
31.03.2024 January 2022 (Date of
incorporation) to 31st
March 2023

Profit attributable ta Equity holders (Rs. in lakhs) (i) 270,80 T7.06
No.of equity shares 50,000.00 50,000.00
Weighted average numbe: of equity shaves for Basic and Diluted EPS {In Nun (iii) 50,000.00 50,000.00
541.60 154,12
541.60 154,12

10.00

10.00

(i)} _Profit attributable to shareholders (used as numerator) (Rs. in lakhs}

Particulars

For the year ended

For the period from 13th

31.03.2024 January 2022 (Date of
incorporation) to 31st
March 2023
Profit for the year as per Statement of Profit and Loss 270.80 77.06
Profit attributable to Equity holders of the company used for computing EPS 270,80 77.06
(iii) Weighted average number nl'eguilx shares (used as d i ) (Nos.)
Particulars For the year ended For the period from 13th

31.03.2024 January 2022 (Date of
incorporation) to 31st
March 2023

Opening balance of issued equity shares 50,000.00 -
Equity shares issued during the period - 50,000.00
Equity shares outstanding as on date 50,000.00 50,000,00
‘Weighted averapge number of equity shares for computing Basic EPS 50,000.00 50,000.00
Ditution Effect:
Add: Weighted average numbers of potential equity shares outstanding during the year - -
Weighted average number of equity shares for computing Diluted EPS 50,000.00 50,000,00 |

Nate: Weighted average number of equity shares is the number of shares outstanding from the date of incorporation adjusted by the number of equity shares issued

during the perod multiplied by the time weighting factor, The fime weighting factor is the number of days for which the specific shares are outstanding as

proportion of total number of days during the period
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25 Impuirment of Assets
During the period, Company has carried out assessment on impairment of individual assets by working out the recoverable amount based on lower of the net realizable value anc
carrying cost in terms of Ind AS 36, “Impairment of Assets” notified under section 133 of the companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 3 of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards
Rules, 2015 and Companies (Indian accounting standards) Amendment Rules 2016. Accordingly, impairment loss of Nil (Previous Period: Nil) has been provided for."

26 Provision, Contingencies and Commitments

(a)

(b)

()

(d)

Provisions
No provisions provided during the year as per Ind AS 37 'Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets'

Contingent liabilities
No Claims against the Company acknowledged as debls as on the reporting date as per Ind AS 37 'Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets’

Contingent assets
No claims in favour of the company accounted as receivables as on the reporting date as per Ind AS 37 'Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets’,

Commitments
Capital: Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account (Net of advance) and not provided for is Nil.
Other: Contractor EPC Work remaining lor execution on March 3151, 2024 Rs 54200 71 Lakh (March 31st, 2023: Rs. 73672.10 Lakh),

7 Segment Reporting

(i)

(i)

(i)

General Information

Operating segments are defined as components of an enterprise for which discrete financial information is available which is being evaluated regularly by the Chief Operating
Decision Maker (CODM) in deciding how to allocate resources and assessing performance. The Board of Directors of the Company is the Chief Operating Decision Make:
(CODM). The Company is engaged in the business of infrastructure development in the state of Uttarakhand and the Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM) monitors the
operating results of the business as a single segment, hence no separate segment needs to be disclosed in accordance with the requirements of Ind AS 108,

Information about geographical information

As the Company operates in a single geographical segment i.e. India, hence no separate geographical segment is disclosed.

Information about major customer

During the year ended March 31st, 2024, Revenue of Rs. 21870.48 Lakhs (March 31st, 2023 Rs. 5205.63 Lakhs) are derived from a single customer ie. NHAI which is more
than 10% of the Company's total revenue.

28 Financial Risk Management
The Company’s principal financial liabilities comprise borrowings, trade payables and other payables. The main purpose of these financial liabilities is lo finance the Company’s
operations. The Company's principal financial assets include receivables, cash and short-term deposits and other financial assets. The Company is exposed to the lollowing risks from its
use of finaneial instruments: Credit risk, Liquidity risk and Market risk. This note presents information about the Company's exposure to each of the above risks, the Company’s
objectives, policies and processes for ing and ging risk.

Risk

Management Framework

The Company'’s aclivities make it susceptible to various risks. The Company has taken adequate measures to address such concerns by developing adequate systems and practices, The
Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Company's risk management framework.

a) Credit Risk
Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations resulting in a financial foss to
the Company. Credit risk arises principally from trade receivables, cash and cash equivalents with banks and other financial assets. The Company's exposure and credit ratings of
its counterparties are continously monitored by the management.

Cash and cash equivalents

The cash and cash equivalents are held in public sector banks with strong credit ratings.

Trade Receivables and other financial assets

The Company’s exposure to credit risk is inflienced mainly by the characteristics of the customer. The demographics of the customer, including the default risk of the industry and
country in which the customer operates, also has an influence on credit risk assessment. The Company derives revenue primarliy from the Construction of Expressway and other
financial assets primarily relates to the unbilled revenue under Service Concession Arrangement (SCA). The credit risk arising from these trade receivables and unbilled revenue is
limited because the counterparty is National Highways Authority of India (NHAI), an autonomous agency of Government of India, with capacity to meet the obligations and
therefore, the risk of default is very negligible or Nil.

(i) Exposure to credit risk (Rs. In Lakhs)
Particulars 31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23
Financial Assets for which allowance is measured using life-time expected credit loss as per simplified approach
Other Non Current Financial Assets 0.01 0.01
Trade Receivables 81.28 -
Cash and Cash Equivalents 523.29 44,82
Other Current Financial Assets 18,729.61 5,299.16

(ii)
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(iii) Summary of loss allowance measured using simplified approach: - (Rs. In Lakhs)
Particulars 31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23
Opening Allowances - -
Provided during the year & =

b)

)

(ii)

Utilization during the year A d L
Amount written off & =

Closing Allowances ~ -

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another
financial asset. The Company's approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when they are due, under
both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Company’s reputation. Liquidity position of the Company is reviewed on a
regular basis by the Board of Directors and appropriate decisions are taken according to the situation.

The table below provides details regarding the significant financial liabilities as at 31st March 2024 & 31st March 2023 (Rs. In Lakhs)
Particulars As at 31st March, 2024

Less than 1 Year 1-2 Years 2 years and above
Borrowings - 1,790.00 9.,506.42
Trade Payables 3,780.37 - -
Other Financial Liabilities 599.38 - .

(Rs. In Lakhs)

Particulars As at 31st March, 2023

Less than 1 Year 1-2 Years 2 years and above
Borrowings - - -
Trade Payables 351.23 - -
Other Financial Liabilities 6.58 - -

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as foreign exchange rates and interest rates will affect the Company’s income. The objective of market risk management
15 to manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimising the return. The Board of Directors is responsible for setting up of policies and
procedures to manage market risks of the Company.

Foreign Currency risk

The functional currency of the Company is Indian Rupees. The Company is not exposed to any foreign currency risk.

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or the future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. At the reporting dale the
company is exposed to interest rate risk in respect of deposits with bank and borrowings from bank.

At the reporting date, interest rate profile of the Company's interest bearing financial instruments is as follows:

Particulars : 31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23

Fixed rate Instrument
Financial Asset 514.00 39.80
Financial Liabilities " -

Floating rate Instrument
Financial Asset - 4

Financial Liabilities 11,296.42 -

29 Fair Value Measurements

a)

Financial instruments by category

Particulars As at 31st March, 2024
FVTPL FVTOCI Amortised Cost
Financial Assets at Amortized Cost
(i) Other Non current financial assets - - 0.01
(ii) Trade Receivables - - B1.28
(iii) Cash and cash equivalents . - - 523.29
(iv) Other current financial assets - = 18,729.61
coc o - - - 19,334.19
Financial Liabilities at Amortized Cost
(i) Borrowings - - 11,296.42
(i1) Trade Payables - - 3,780.37
(iii) Other financial liabilities - - 59928
- - 15,676.07

53



Ircon Haridwar Bypass Limited
CIN:-U45209DL2022G 01392406
Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2024

(All amounts in Indian Rupees Lakhs unless otherwise stated)

Particulars As at Jist March, 2023
FVTPL FVTOCI Amortised Cost
Financial Assets at Amortized Cost
(i) Other Non current financial assets - 0.01
(ii) Trade Receivables B -
(1ii) Cash and cash equivalents - - 44,82
(iv) Other current financial assets - - 5.299.16
- - 5,343.99
Financial Liabilities at Amortized Cost
(1) Borrowings - - -
(ii) Trade Payables ] - 351.23
(1i1) Other financial liabilities - - 6.58
- - 357.81

b) Fair value hicrarchy

Financial assets and financial liabilities are measured at fair value in these financial statements and are grouped into three levels of a fair value hierarchy. The three Levels are
defined based on the observability of significant inputs to the measurement, as follows:
Level 1. Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or Ilablhty either directly or indirectly.

Level 3: Unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

¢) Carrying value and Fair value of financial assets and liabilities as at 31st March 2024

Particulars Carrying Value Fair Value
Level-1 Level-2 Level-3
Financial Assets at Amortized Cost
(i) Other Non current financial assets 0.01 - - 0.01
(ii) Trade Receivables 81,28 - - 81.28
(111) Cash and cash equivalents 523.29 - - 523.29
(iv} Other current financial assets 18,729.61 - - 18,729.61
19,334.19 - - 19,334.19
Financial Liabilitics at Amortized Cost
(i} Borrowings 11,296.42 - - 11,296.42
(ii) Trade Payables 3,780.37 - 3,780.37
(iii) Other financial labilities 599.28 - - 599.28
15,676.07 - - 15,676.07
Carrying value and Fair value of financial assets and liabilities as at 31st March 2023
Particulars Carrying Value Fair Value
Level-1 Level-2 Level-3
Financial Asscts at Amortized Cost :
(1) Other Non current financial assets 0.01 - 0.01
(ii) Trade Receivables - -
(iti) Cash and cash equivalents 44.82 - - 44.82
(iv) Other current financial assets 5,299.16 - - 5,299.16
5,343.99 5 - 5343.99
Financial Liabilities at Amortized Cost
{i) Borrowings . - - +
(ii) Trade Payables 351.23 - - 351.23
(iii) Other financial liabilities 6.58 - - 6.58
357.81 - - 357.81|

The management assessed that fair value of cash and cash equivalents, trade payables, and other current financial assets / liabilities approximate their carrying amounts largely
due to the short-term maturities of these instruments. The fair value of the financial assets and liabilities is included at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a

current transaction between willing parties.

30 Capital Management

The Company’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard its ability to continue as a going concern and to optimise returns to shareholders. The capital structure of the company
is based on gement’s jud of its strategic and day-to-day needs with a focus on total equity so as to maintain investor, creditors and market confidence. The management and

the Board of Directors monitor the return on capital. The Company may take appropriate steps in order to maintain, or if necessary adjust, its capital structure.
Company has taken a term loan during the FY 2023-24 Rs 11297.00 laks (Previous Year Rs Nil ) from State Bank of India to finance its project.

Particulars 31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23
Borrowings (Note No. 11) 11,296.42 =
Long Term Debt 11,296.42 -
Equity (Note No. 9) 5.00 5.00
Other Equity (Note No, 10) 8,584.99 8,294.00
Taotal Equity 8,589.99 8,299.00
Debt Equity Ratio 1.32 -
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31 Revenue

A,

1i)

Disaggregation of Revenue

Set out below is the disaggregation of the company's revenue from contracts with customers into operating segment and type of product or services

For the year ended 31.03.2024

Typeor Pl:od“u Revenue as per Ind AS 115 wheHind to R performance Other Revenue bl
or Services obligation Statement of Profit
Domestic | Foreign Total Input Method Qutput Method and Loss
Highway 21,870.48 . 21,870.48 21,870.48 - 21,870.48
Total 21,870.48 - 21,870.48 21,870.48 - 21,870.48

The revenue of Rs 21870.48

Lakhs is recognised over a period of time.

Type of Product

For the period from 13th January 2022 {Date of incorporation) to 31st March 2023

Revenue as per Ind AS 115

Method for measuring performance

obligation

Other Revenue

Total as per

or Services Statement of Profit
Domestic | Foreign Total Input Method Output Method and Loss
Highway 5,205.63 - 5,205.63 5,205.63 - 5.205.63
Total 5,205.63 - 5,205.63 5,205.63 - 5,205.63
The revenue of Rs 5205.63 Lakhs is recognised over a period of time,
Contract balances
Particulars As at As at
31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023

Trade Receivables (Note 6.1) 81.28 -
Contract Assets (Note 6.3} 5.205.63

17,711.59

Contract hiablity

Contract Assets are recognised over the peried in which services are performed to represent the Company's right to consideration in exchange for goods or services transferred to
the customer. It includes balances due from customers under construction contracts that arise when the Company receives payments from customers as per terms of the contracts
however the revenue is recogmsed over the period under input method Any amount previously recognised as a contract asset is reclassified to trade receivables on satisfaction ol
the condition attached i.e. future service which is necessary to achieve the billing milestone.

Movement in contract balances during the period

Particulars As at As at

31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023
Contract asset at the Beginning of the year 5,205.63 -
Contract asset at the end of the year 17,711.59 5,205.63
Net inerease/(decrease) 12,505.96 5,205.63

For the year 2023-24 & 2022-23, there has been net increase of Rs. 12505.96 Lakhs & Rs. 5205.63 Lakhs respectively due to recognition of revenue based on input method
whereas bills for workdone are certified based on contract condition. There is no reclassification from unbilled revenue to trade receivables during the period.

Contract liabilities relating to construction contracts are balances due to customers, these arise when a particular milestone payment exceeds the revenue recognised to date under
the input method and advance received in long term construction contracts. The amount of Advance received gets adjusted over the construction period as and when invoicing is

made to the customer.

Particulars Asat As at

31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023
Contract liabilities at the Beginning of the year - -
Contract liabilities at the end of the year - i
Net increase/(decrease) - B
Set out below is the amount of revenue recognised from:
Particulars As at As at

31st March, 2024

31st March, 2023

Amount included in contract liabilities at the beginning of the period

Performance obligation satisfied in previous period

Cost to obtain the contract

The Company has nat incurred any incremental costs of obtaining contracts with a customer and therefore, not recognised an asset for such costs.
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E. Tvansaction price allocated to the remaining performance obligations
The transaction price for remaining performance obligations shall be received over the contract period in proportion of the work performed/services provided by the Company.

Information about the Company’s performance obligations are summarised below:

The transaction price allocated to the remaining performance obligations (unsatisfied or partially unsatisfied) as at year end are as follows:

Particulars As at As at

31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023
Within one year 46,880.46 62,495.84
More than one vear to 2 vears 12.891.67 18.796.90
More than 2 vears 2,883.33 2.916.67
[ Total 62,655.46 84,209.41

* The amount disclosed above does not include variable consideration which is constrained.

32 Service Concession Arrangements
Public to private service concession arrangements are recorded in accordance with Appendix "C"- Service Concession Arrangements (Ind AS-115), Appendix "C" is applicable if:
a) The Grantor controls or regulates which services the operator should provide with the infrastructure, to whom it must provide them, and at what price; and
b) The Grantor controls- through ownership, beneficial entitlement, or otherwise- any significant residual interest in the infrastructure at the end of the term of the arrangement.

If both of the above conditions are met simultaneously, a financial asset is recognized to the extent that the operator has an unconditional contractual right to receive cash or other
financial asset from or at the discretion of the Grantor for the service.

These financial assets are initially recognized at cost, which is understood as the fair value of the service provided plus other direct costs directly attributable to the operation. They are
then stated at amortized cost at the end of each financial year.

Ircon Haridwar Bypass Limited (IrconHBLY) has entered into service concession arrangement with National Highway authority of India (NHAI) dated 8th March 2022 in terms of which
NHAI (the grantor) has authorised the company to carry the business of upgradation & construction of four laning of Haridwar Bypass Package-I from Km. 0+000 (Km 188+100 of NH
58) to Km, 153+100 { Km 5+100 of NH-74) in the state of Uttarakhand on Hybrid Annuity Mode. In terms of the said agreement IrconHBL has an obligation to complete construction of
the project of four laning of Haridwar Bypass section and to keep the project assets in proper working condition including all projects assets whose lives have expired. The Project is
under Annuity pattern

The Concession period shall be |5 years commencing from the Commercial operation date. At the end of the concession period, the assets will be transferred back to National Highway
Authority of [ndia (NHATI),

In case of material breach in terms of agreement the NHAI and IrconHBL have right to terminate the agreement if they are not able to cure the event of default in accordance with such
3gl'€tl\‘lt‘nl‘.

Company has recogmized financial asset of Rs, 17711.59 Lakhs under service concession agreement upto the period ended 31st March 2024 afier taking into account the receivables due
from NHAI on completion of milestone as per terms of the contract. The company has recognised revenue of Rs 21870.48 Lakhs for the period ended on 31st March 2024 on
construction uf Road under SCA and Operation Revenue as per Ind AS - 115 related to "Revenue from Customers”, The company has recognized receivable under service concession
arrangement and shown under Other Financial current Assets which it will receive as per terms of the contract based on the completion of milestone, as on 3 15t March 2024.

Disclosure in terms of Appendix D of Ind AS 115:
In terms of the disclosure required in Appendix D in Ind AS -115 Revenue from Cusiomers, as notified in the companies (Indian Accounting Standard) rulcs 2016, the amcunt
considered in the financial statements up to the balance sheet date are as follows:-

Particulars For the period from
For the year ended P ':;:l:::“;. s
31.03.2024 i ; 3
incorporation) to 31st
March 2023
Contract Revenue Recognized 21,870.48 5205.63
Aggregate amount of cost incurred 21,759.52 5206.27
Amount of advance received from Client A *
Amount of retention by Client 4
Profit/( Loss) recognised during the period for exchange of construction service for a financial asset 111,16 (0.64)
Gross amount due from Client for Contract Works 81.28 3

33 Leases
a) Company as a Lessee
(i) The Company has no leasing arrangement which are non-cancellable in nature. Accordingly, no right of use assets and lease liabilities have been recognised by the Company.

(i1) The Company has taken Office on lease with lease terms of 12 months or more however lease can be terminated on one month notice by either side therefore company applies
the *short-term lease’ recognition exemptions for such leases without any penalty.

The following are the amounts recognised in Statement of profit and loss:

Particulars For the period from
For the year ended A Friary e
31.03.2024 Khageof
incorporation) to 31st
March 2023
Expense relating to short-term leases {Refer Nore ) F31 3.51

b) Company as a Lessor
Company has no leasing arrangemen,
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34

35

37

Details of delayed payment to Micro and Small Enterprises as defined under the MSMED Act, 2006

S.No.|Particulars As at As at
31st March, 2024 Jist March, 2023

a) |The principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of each accounting year:
- Principal amount due to micro and small enterprises - -
- Interest due on above - -
b) |The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of Section 16 of the MSMED Act 2006 along with the amounts of the
payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day during each accounting year 3 =
¢} |The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which have been paid but beyond the
appointed day during the year) but without adding the interest specified under the MSMED Act 2006 1 a
d) |The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting year = =
e)  |The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such date when the interest dues
as above are actually paid to the small enterprise for the purpose of disallowance as a deductible expenditure under Section 23

Jof the MSMED Act 2006 = B

Corporate Social Responsibility
The Company is not covered under section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 and no CSR expenditure has been incurred during the period.

Diselosure pursuant to section 186 of the Companies Act 2013:
There are no loans given, investments made and guarantee given are made by the Company during the period.

Other Statutory Disclosures
The MCA vide notification dated 24th March 2021 has amended Schedule [Il to the Companies Act. 2013 in respect of certain disclosures which are applicable from st April 2021, The
Company has incorporated the changes as per the said amendment in the financial statements and below disclosures are made in compliance of the said amendment :

(1) The Company has no transactions with companies struck off under section 248 of the Companies Act, 2013 or Section 560 of Companies Act, 1956 during the financial year
ending 31st March 2024 and 31st March 2023.

(ir) The Company has not traded or invested in Crypto Currency or Virtual Currency during the financial year ending 3 1st March 2024 and 3 1st March 2023

(1ii) The Company do not have any Benami property as on 31st March 2024 and 31st March 2023, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the Company for
holding any Benami property.

(iv) The Company do not have any prior period errors in financial year ending on 31st March 2024 and 3 st March 2023 to be disclosed separately in Statement of changes in equity.

(v) The Company has no cases of any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory period in the financial year ending 31st March 2024 and 315
March 2023,

(vi) During the financial year 2023-24 and 2022-25 (13 01.2022 to 31.03.2023), the Company have not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies),
including foreign entities (Intermediaries) with the understanding that the [ntermediary shall:
(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or
(b) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries

(vii) During the financial year 2023-24 and 2022-23 (13.01.2022 to 31,03.2023), the Company have not reccived any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities
(Funding Party) with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Company shall:
(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or
(b) provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries,

(viii) The Company has not granted any loans and advances in the nature of loans to promoters, directors, KMP and other related parties in the financial year ending 3 1st March 2024
and 3 1st March 2023

(ix) The Company does not have any immovable properties as at 31st March 2024 and 31st March 2023

(x) The Company has not been declared as wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or any government authority in the financial year 2023-24 and 202223
(13.01.2022 to 31.03.2023).

(xi) Company is not required to submit statement of current assets with the bank and thercfore reconciliation of the statement filed by the company with bank and the books of
accounts is not applicable,

(xii) The Company does not have any transactions in financial year 2023-24 and 2022-23 (15.01.2022 to 31.03.2023), where the company has not used the borrowings from banks and
financial institutions for the specific purpose for which it was taken at the balance sheet date.

(xiii) The Company have not entered into any scheme(s) of arrangements during the year ending 3 1st March 2024 and period ending 3 1st March 2023,

(xiv) The Company has not entered in any transaction not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments
under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961,

(xv) Company has not received any grants and donations during the year ending 3 [st March 2024 and period ending 31st March 2023,

{(xvi) The Company does not have any Capital Work- in- Progress, Investment Property, Intangible Assets and Intangible Assets under Development as at 31st March, 2024 and 3 st
March, 2023. During the year 2023-24 and 2022-23 (13.01.2022 to 31.03.2023), the company has not revalued any of its Property,plant and equipment.
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(xvii) The following accounting ratios are aisclosed: -

S.No |Particulars Numerator Denominator March 31st, 2024 March 31st, 2023 % chang R for ch
more than 25%
a) [Current ratio Current Assets Current Liabilities 5.26 18.93 -72.23%
b) |Debt-equity ratio Total Debt Shareholder’s 1.32 0.00 100.00%
Equity
c)  |Debt service coverage ratio | Earnings for debt service |  Debt service = 1.85 ’ 0.00 100.00%
= Net profit after taxes + | Interest & Lease
Non-cash operating Payments +
expenses Principal
Repavments
d) |Return on equity ratio Net Profits after taxes — Average 0.03 0.01 245.54%
Preference Dividend Shareholder’s As the previous year
Equity figures are for the
&) |Inventory turnover ratio Cost of roods sold Average Inventory 0.00 0.00 N.A period from 13th
f}  |Trade reccivables tumover | Net credit sales= Gross Average Trade 269.08 0.00 100.00% January 2022 to 31st
ratio credit sales- sales return Receivable March 2022, ratios
g)  |Trade payable turnover ratic | Net credit purchases = Average Trade 1031 14.61 -29.41% comparison with
Gross credit purchases - Payables current year does not
purchase return provide the appropriate
h)  |Net capital turnover ratio Net Sales = Total sales- | Working capital = 110 0.63 75.33% result. Therefore
sales return Current assets — reason for change is
Current liabilities not provided.
i) |Net profit ratio Net Profit Net Sales = Total 0.01 0.01 -16.36%
sales- sales return
j)  |Return on capital employed | Earnings before interest {Capital Employed = 0.04 0.01 182.09%
and taxes Tangible Net Worth
+ Total Debt +
Deferred Tax
k) |Return on investment [ncome generated from [nvestment 0.00 0.00 NA
Investiments (Finance
Income)

38 Other disclosures

(1) The Ircon Haridwar bypass limited was incorporated on 13th January 2022 as a wholly owned subsidiary of Ircon International Limited.

(ii) The State Bank of India (SBI) has sanctioned the term loan of Rs. 447.61 crore. Term loan of Rs. 112,97 crore disbursed during the FY 2023-24.

(iif) The Company has a system of obtaining periodic confirmation of balances from banks and other parties. So far as trade/other payables and loans and advances are concerned, the
balance confirmation letters were sent to the parties. Balances of some of the Trade Receivables (Balance confirmation is sought but not yet recrived), Other Assets, Trade anc
Other Payables are subject to confirmations/reconciliations and consequential adjustment, if any. Reconciliations are carried out on on-going basis. However, management docs
not expect to have any material financial impact of such pending confirmations / reconciliations.

(iv) In the opinion of the management, the value of assets on realisation in the ordinary course of business, will not be less than the value at which these are stated in the Balance

(v) Figures rounded off to the nearest rupees in Lakh.

#9 Certain prior periods amount have been reclassified for consistency with the current period presentations. These reclassifications have no effect on the reported results of operations. Alsc
previous year figures are shown under bracket () to differentiate from current year figures.

As per our report of even date For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
or Ravi Ramesh & Associates ==~
Al Firm Registration No. : 004306

Ircon Haridwar Bypass Limited

Alin Roy Choudhu
Director
(DIN:-10489550)

(DIN:-(19008553)

Date :10.05.2024
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IRCON HARIDWAR BYPASS LIMITED \
(‘lrconHBL’)

Registered & Corporate Office:
C-4, District Centre, Saket, New Delhi -110017, India

Tel.: +91-11-29565666 | Fax: +91-11-26522000, 26854000
E-mail id: cospv.ircon@gmail.com
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